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Satisfy the needs and preferences of various custfomer segments

Embry
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via high-precision positioning of its brands and innovative and
superior-quality products
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Sales Network
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An Extensive Network Capturing Growing Opportunities In China

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Chongging, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. The extensive network enables the Group to efficiently
respond fo customer needs and deepen its market penefration in China.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,007 refail outlets, comprising 840 concessionary counters
and 167 retail shops in the Chinese Mainland, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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Corporate Information
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Directors and Board Committees

Directors

Executive Directors

NGOK Ming Chu (Chairman)

CHENG Pik Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer)
CHENG Chuen Chuen

LU Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHAN Chi On [alias, Derek Chan)
LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie lee)
EET. S. (olias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Board Committees

Audit Committee

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau) (Chairman)
CHAN Chi On [alias, Derek Chan)
EET. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Remuneration Committee

LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie lee) (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho liza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

EET. S. (olias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Nomination Committee

EET. S. (alias, lee Tien-sheng) (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho liza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie lee)

Compliance Officer
CHUNG King Yeung

Company Secretary
SO Ka Man

Registered Office
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business

7th Floor, Wyler Centre |l

200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung, New Territories

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Principal Bankers

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Bank of China Limited
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Legal Advisers

As to Hong Kong law:
Chiu & Partners

As to PRC law:

GFE Law Office
Grandall Law Firm (Jinan)
Zhong Lun Law Firm

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Inferest Entity Auditor

Share Registrars

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office in the Cayman Islands
Suntera (Cayman) Limited

Suite 3204, Unit 2A

Block 3, Building D

P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court

Camana Bay

Grand Cayman KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong
Tricor Invesfor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Investor Relations
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Optimise the omi-channel coverage of
its sales network by integrating the online
and offline sales
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Chairman’s Statement
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Adhere to a multi-brand strategy, optimise its

Production technology and

Product designs
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To All Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Embry Holdings Limited, |
hereby present the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2023 (“the Current Year”).

In 2023, the impact of the pandemic gradually receded, but the
pressure of global inflation and persistent interest rafe hikes, coupled
with geopolitical tensions and a modest global economic growth.
The uncertainty of inflation and slowing income growth weighed on
consumer confidence while a sluggish real estate market offset most
of the postpandemic recovery's contribution to China's economic
growth. According to the National Bureau of Stafistics, China's
gross domestic product (GDP) increased by 5.2% in 2023, the
slowest growth rate in 30 years except the three years of the
pandemic outbreak. The overall economy fell short of expectations,
directly affecting the retail consumption market. The sub-essential
underwear industry only achieved a slight increase in sales
throughout the year, and the road to market recovery remained
challenging.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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NGOK Ming Chu
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Chairman of the Group
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The Group responded prudently to market changes, gradually
strengthened brand promotion and allocated more resources in the
second half of 2023, and also formulated diversified promotional
and sales strafegies fo continuously consolidate and sfrengthen our
brand influence and market share. In the postpandemic consumption
era, domestic consumption structure and consumption habits are
gradually changing, and online shopping has become an
indispensable part of people’s lifestyle and e-commerce platforms
continue fo flourish. The Group closely follows the traffic frend, uses
social media platforms to promote its brand, and strengthens the
development of underwear styles exclusively available through
ecommerce.

At the same time, the Group has strengthened the positioning of its
brands fo target different segmented markets to fulfil the needs and
preferences of varying customer groups. The Group operates a fofal
of seven brands, including flagship brands EMBRY FORM and
FANDECIE, functional brand COMFIT, online brand E-BRA, men's
underwear brand IVU, offline wholesale brand IADORE and luxury
brand LIZA CHENG. In view of the continuous market demand for
susfainable green concepts and China Chic products, the Group
has confinued fo opfimise its production technology and product
designs to meef the changing needs of the market and consumers.

SEBEEHMHBEL RIS T=HT+F
BEN NSRRI EE > IR REIR > W HIET
Lt EEREER > TEEE KN mME
FENRTHEER - EABBBHERA
Bl HBEE RO BB IBEZ M » 4R LR
MERABIREERAIHANE D > EFTEE
eEEIER > SRBMREEE > MAHR
Eﬁ%?é?&%ﬁ:ﬂﬁ > WNRAZEEREMHAN
FAI\ ©

B ERy > EE IR IEE T AR TE
EUUHBAEMEIETS > BETRAZRE
NWEEREY - EEETHEECERE > &
EEE R R RS R FWEF e @R
COMFIT ~ #B4& R h& E-BRA ~ 5514 X SRR IVU ~
MTIHEREER RS ERT RELUZA
CHENG - A5 &} Pl 5 & i (o 73 Fe B4 /Bl 2 o
FEZIN5EE  AEEFERCEERM
KREmsr BETHBEEETEEENE
K o

Annual Report 3R 2023 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#]75 AR AR

09



10

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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In 2023, the Group continued fo optimise ifs sales network. In order
fo keep abreast of the industry trend, the Group has stepped up its
efforts in exploring and developing the online shopping market to
improve the overall operational efficiency of its sales network. The
Group has also optimised the omi-channel coverage of its sales
network by relocating or closing down inefficient stores and
appropriately infegrating the proportion of online and offline sales.
There was a net decrease of /7 retail outlets for the Current Year,
with the network covering a number of key provinces and cities
across China, and 1,007 retail outlets with better sales efficiency
were refained.

During the Current Year, the Group’s revenue was
HK$1,281,753,000, and gross profit was approximately
HK$956,103,000, with a gross profit margin of 74.59%. loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately

HK$72,168,000.

The board of directors has resolved not fo recommend the payment
of a final dividend in view of the uncerfain economic outlook. The
Company believes that this measure is a prudent and responsible
means of preserving cash for the longterm financial health of the
Group.

Llooking ahead to 2024, the global macro-economy remains
challenging. China’s economic growth momentum will be limited in
the short ferm as the government has not yet infroduced a large-scale
economic stimulus plan. Therefore, the Group maintains a
conservative outlook towards the overall economic situafion in the
Chinese Mainland and predicts that the growth rate of the
underwear industry in general will be limited in 2024,
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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The Group will adopt a prudent approach and pay close attention
fo market trends in terms of product designs, production technology,
marketing and sales channels so as to align itself with consumers’
rational approach fo consumption, with emphases placed on quality,
functions and appearance, and green and sustainable consumption.
The Group will press on with the existing multi-brand strategy,
confinue to explore different market segments, actively implement the
sales strategy centred on consumers and market demand, closely
follow the pace of changes in domestic consumption patterns, adjust
the number of offline stores in a timely manner, save costs to
vigorously develop online sales channels, step up interactive
publicity on social media, actively promote traffic monetization, and
capifalise on the ecommerce boom to drive the online sales of its
brands. In terms of production, the Group will leverage the
advantages of resource deployment through its self-production and
selfdistribution model as well as the ancillary logistics facilities of
intelligent warehouses for finished goods and materials fo enhance
production and logistics efficiency, and actively optimise its supply
chain. Adhering to the commitment to quality, the Group will
continue to adopt a flexible and effective multi-brand strategy to
respond to the everchanging market, and strive o create long-term
value for shareholders through the prudent and effective allocation of
resources.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors
and all our employees for their contribution and efforts made during
this challenging year and continuing to walk hand in hand with the
Group. | would also like to express my gratitude to our shareholders
and business partners for their trust and support. In order to thank
shareholders for their frust in us, the Group will continue to make its
best endeavours to create greater values for its shareholders,
customers, employees and business pariners, stepping forward fo a
brighter future together.

Ngok Ming Chu

Chairman

21 March 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B L i S A

Business and Operations Review

In 2023, the impact of the pandemic gradually receded, but the
global economic growth remained moderate as a result of the
pressure of global inflation, persistent interest rafe hikes, the ongoing
Russia-Ukraine war and the resurgence of the US-China technology
dispute resulted in geopolitical tensions and weak trade. The
uncertainty of inflation and slowing income growth dampened
consumer confidence while a sluggish real estate market offset most
of the postpandemic recovery's contribution to China's economic
growth. According to the National Bureau of Statistics, China'’s
gross domestic product (GDP) increased by 5.2% in 2023 — the
slowest growth rate in 30 years except the three years of the
pandemic outbreak. China’s economy was recovering, albeit
slowly.

The overall economic recovery fell short of expectations, directly
affecting the retail consumption market. The fotal retail sales
increased by 7.2% in 2023 due to the low comparison base in
2022. However, the divergence between different industries in refail
sales was obvious, with an increase of only 5.8% in the refail sales
of consumer goods, which fell short of expectations. Consumers
remained cautious on
spending and preferred
low-priced, funcfional and
costeffective consumption.
The sub-essential
underwear industry only
achieved a slight increase
in sales throughout the
year, and the road to
recovery remained
challenging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Current Year”), the
Group's revenue amounted to HK$1,281,753,000, representing a
decrease of 3.94% from that of HK$1,334,269,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the "Previous Year"], and the gross
profit margin decreased by 45 basis points to 74.59%. Loss
affributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$72,168,000, as compared to a loss affributable to owners of
the Company of HK$51,239,000 recorded in the Previous Year.
Loss per share was HK 17.08 cents (2022: HK 12.13 cents).

The board of directors has resolved not to recommend the payment
of a final dividend in view of the uncertain economic outlook. The
Company believes that this measure is a prudent and responsible
means of preserving cash for the longterm financial health of the
Group.

Brand management

In 2023, the Group continued to make good use of the advantages
of its multi-brand strategy and adjusted marketing arrangements in
response fo market demand for its seven brands, namely EMBRY
FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IVU, IADORE and LIZA
CHENG. The Group caters to the segmented market by highlighting
its brands’ unique personalities fo meet the needs and preferences of
various customer groups. The Group enhanced its brand
competitiveness and expanded its market share while consolidating
its flagship brands, EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE, which

confributed the majority of sales.

Embry Holdings Limited BEERARAT / Annual Report 3R 2023

of 5w B4 M (s

BE_Z 1+ ﬁ + HiEFE (T4
Bl ZREBWZEA1,281,753,00087T @ &
BE_Z__"F+_ )ﬂ + BEFE(LE—
BAEE]) BY1,334,269,000E 7T F3.94% >
EFETEASERELE74.59% « KATHER
ANFELEIBA4972,168,0008 7 > ™ £—1&
FERESARNTER AEMHEIES1,239,000
,%75 BREBEEA1708BUW(ZE -
3 ©

R BRI RIDATERN » EFE N EF K
FERE  AABDRBR/LENBEESZH U
REREERFIEBNRBMBFEES

mhR EIE
—ET=% Z!K%lféitﬁﬁ*%ﬂﬂ%u%}ﬁi‘i%%@
B FENSBERBECEAMRE — ZFHS

5 WEF COMFIT\ E-BRA ~ IVU ~ 2 s K LIZA
CHENGRYE i % Hf - EE ST AmMn1E™

5 ERSERENEREN  mEFRER
BENEEERNEYT  t2EHIHEREMR
RHTE A T hR R S SF IR EF OVRI By > hNo& i
MG B NNBATHERE




Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In ferms of brand promotion, in the second half of 2023, the Group
gradually strengthened brand promotion, allocated more resources,
carried out online and offline integrated marketing during holiday
seasons, and invited a famous actress as the spokesperson to gain
strong media exposure for ifs products and stimulate sales growth
with the branding and celebrity effects. As e-<commerce platforms
continue fo thrive, the Group closely follows the traffic trend, uses
social media platforms to promote its brand, and strengthens the
development of underwear styles exclusively available through
e-commerce. The Group also started to collaborate with well-known
online sfreamers on mainstream social media platforms such as Tmall
and Douyin for livestreaming to attract potential target consumers. At
the same time, the Group promoted its brand and products through
infeed advertisements on WeChat Moments and Xiaohongshu
KOlLs, and established good customer relations and enhanced brand
loyalty through interaction with customer groups. During the vear, the
number of fans of Embry’s official social media accounts continued
to increase, and the level of consumer attention to the brand
increased significantly.

In response to China's strategy of attaining the goals of “carbon
peaking” and “carbon neutrality”, and to demonstrate its belief in
sustainable green development over the years, the Group held the
“"MADE IN GREEN Ocean Journey” art pop-up store activities in
large shopping malls and department sfores in various cities during
the year, promoting public awareness of marine environmental
protection. In addition, the Group specially launched product series
based on environmental profection concepts and environmentally
friendly materials, such as "Heart of the Ocean (/& 7¥ Z )" and
"low-carbon life (& fix 4 J&)", conveying a green and
environmentally friendly living aftitude to consumers in the form of
short videos, live streaming by social media influencers and other
multimedia forms, so as to further strengthen the brand’s concept of
sustainable and low-carbon development.

In recent years, China Chic has become fashionable in consumption,
and has taken China’s various consumer goods markets by storm,
injecting new vitality info consumption sectors and exerting especially
strong influence on young consumers. The Group has gained insight
info the trend and launched a number of Chinese fashion underwear
products based on the fraditions of Chinese festivals and weddings,
including the “Peace Year affer Year (5% 5% & )" series. The Group
also cooperated with well-known new national style painters to
create a Chinese styletheme illustration “Xi Le Jia An (BB#£5K % )" for
the Year of the loong, produced a series of online and offline
promotion materials, and combined high-quality products with
fraditional elements from the oriental aesthefics to create the brand

value of EMBRY FORM in China Chic style.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Sales network

In 2023, the Group continued to optimise its sales network. As of
31 December 2023, the Group had 1,007 retail outlets in total,
including 840 concessionary counters and 167 retail stores,
representing a net decrease of 77 retail outlets as compared to the
end of 2022. The Group seized the opportunity in online sales, and
actively explored and developed the online shopping market to
improve the overall operational efficiency of its sales network. The
Group strategically adjusted its store network and appropriately
integrated the proportion of online and offline sales to achieve
optimal sales channel coverage.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to operate online
mirror stores with product information synchronised with the physical
refail stores, achieving mutual empowerment of online and offline
channels fo affract fraffic. It eliminated competition between physical
and online stores, and also provided a convenient alternative
consumption channel. The closed loop of operation helped opfimise
deployment of sfore inventory and inventory management.

Product design, research and development

The Group has always attached great importance to excellent
product quality and comfortable wearing experience and continued
to upgrade product designs and source the right materials to meet
consumers’ demand for lightweight underwear products while
ensuring a comfortable cut and design. The Group also emphasises
the brand concept of environmental protection and health, deeply
incorporates the concept into ifs product designs and production
technology, selects environmentally friendly and pollution-free raw
materials, ensures that each product is safe and harmless, and
facilitates consumers’ pursuit of a healthy life. In order to cater to the
consumers’ demand for underwear products that are specialised,
refined and beautiful, the Group continues to improve ifs production
fechnology, striving to improve production efficiency and operational
efficiency of ifs supply chain in order to maintain ifs leading position
in the highly competitive market.
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During the Current Year, the Group launched a full range of popular
new collections, including: EMBRY FORM's "Rose Garden (BIRE )"
and “Premier Black (2% E4Z)"; FANDECIE's "Vintage File (18518
ZZ2)" and "National Girl (Bl&E/%Z)"; COMFITs "Spring Garden (&
HTEE])" and “Oriental Rhythm (ZZE88R75)"; LIZA CHENG's "Quality
Sleep [fBBR)" and "Aurora (#B3¢)"; E-BRA’s "Slim and Slender (#)"
and "Chic (3#)"; IADORE's "Fresh with Ripple (JDHEME )" and
"Secluded Grassland (B EHAHE )" and IVU's "Fortune Score (f&i&
51"

In addition, the Group has always advocated environmental
protection. Guided by the health and comfort of women, the Group
attaches great importance to the ecological and environmental
performance of products and cares about the protection of the
environment during the production process. The Group confinues fo
strengthen the research and development of green products. During
the year, the "Heart of the Ocean (/8 ¥ Z )" series of new
underwear products were launched, using bio-based and
environmentally friendly materials as underwear fabrics and straps,
reducing the use of petroleum by-products and thus the large amount
of carbon dioxide generated during the refining process, and
actively practicing the low-carbon, ecological and environmental
concepts.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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In 2023, the Group obtained new patents in China, including 12 utility model patents, 8 design patents and 1 invention
patent. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 125 patents, including 79 utility model patents, 12 invention
patents and 34 design patents.

Production capacity

The Group has its own production bases in Jinan, Shandong Province and Changzhou, Jiangsu Province. The plant in
Shandong is equipped with infelligent warehouses for finished goods and materials. Based on the market changes during
the year, the Group carefully analysed the sales of different brands and segmented markets, reviewed and adjusted ifs
production volume from time fo time and implemented flexible production. At the same time, on the basis of optimising the
traditional sewing technology, the Group introduced new technology and equipment innovations to enhance product
functions, and achieve optimal production efficiency and improve the supply chain efficiency.

In order to achieve sustainable development, the Group’s Shandong Industrial Park is environmentally friendly and
mainfains carbon emissions at a low level af the source. The first phase of the photovoltaic power generation project of the
Shandong Plant has been put into use during the Current Year, and at the same time, energy saving and emission
reduction were achieved by using ground source heat pump renewable energy, thermal insulation and energy-saving walls
and natural lighting. The Group’s proprietary automatic underwear packaging machine uses degradable plastic products
as packaging materials fo reduce environmental pollution.
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Human resources

The Group understands that employees are one of the cornerstones
of the Group's operations. It not only trained its employees and
improved their welfare, but also reviewed the infernal management
culture from time fo time to enhance the sense of belonging among
the employees. Meanwhile, the Group also actively improved
production technology together with the ufilisation of automated
logistics system, improved the workflow of employees and raised
production efficiency, so as to mitigate the pressure of overall cost
increase and improve operational efficiency.

As af 31 December 2023, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,390 (2022: approximately 4,568). Total staff
cost [including wages and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses,
contributions to the refirement benefits scheme and share option
scheme but excluding directors’” and chief executive's remunerations)
for the Current Year was HK$455,603,000 (2022:
HK$464,669,000).

Financial Review

Revenue

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$1,281,753,000,
representing a decrease of 3.94% from that in the Prior Year, mainly
affributable to the depreciation of the Renminbi, while the Group's
sales from the Chinese Mainland market were broadly flat at
consfant exchange rates. In addition, as the recovery of China's
economy was dragged down by factors such as geopolitical
fensions, inflation and income uncertainty which also greatly affected
consumer sentiment. Although consumer sentiment is gradually
recovering, it has not yet refurned fo the pre-pandemic levels.

Revenue from retail sales for the Current Year was
HK$875,508,000, which was basically the same as that for the
Prior Year and accounted for 68.31% of the Group's tofal revenue.
The Group recorded a decrease in sales on ecommerce platforms.
Revenue from online sales decreased by 10.4% to
HK$368,648,000 in 2023, accounting for 28.76% of the total
revenue. Consumers in China increased their offline consumption
mainly due to the relaxation of pandemic prevention and control, in
confrast fo the online consumption peak in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The Chinese Mainland market is the main source of income for the
Group. During the Current Year, revenue from the Chinese Mainland
market was HK$1,239,028,000, accounting for 96.67% of the

Group's fofal revenue.

Among the seven brands operated by the Group, EMBRY FORM,
the flagship brand, and FANDECIE, the young and energetic brand,
are the main sources of income for the Group and their confributions
to the total revenue accounted for 55.32% and 15.98%
respectively. Revenue from EMBRY FORM amounted to
HK$709,065,000, up by 1.71% from that for the Prior Year.
Revenue from FANDECIE amounted to HK$204,761,000, down by
19.43% from that for the Prior Year. The combined revenues from
other brands E-BRA, COMFIT, IVU, IADORE and LIZA CHENG for
the Current Year amounted to HK$364,884,000, accounting for
28.46% of the total revenue.

Lingerie continues to be the core product line of the Group. During
the Current Year, sales of underwear decreased by 3.44% from that
for the Prior Year to HK$1,095,290,000, representing 85.46% of
the revenue of the Group. Sales of sleepwear amounted to
HK$ 136,704,000, accounting for 10.67% of the revenue of the
Group, while sales of swimwear amounted to HK$3 1,592,000,
accounting for 2.46% of the revenue of the Group.

Gross profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$956,103,000, representing a decrease of
4.51% trom that for the Prior Year. It was mainly attributable to the
reversal of impairment of inventories provided under cost of sales of
approximately HK$20,234,000 in the Current Year, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$22,940,000 as compared to that
of approximately HK$43,174,000 in the Prior Year. In addition,
consumers lacked confidence in the macroeconomic environment,
which depressed the consumer senfiment, and remained cautious
about spending. For underwear, which is sub-essential, various
brands met market needs at a relatively large discount, and the
average price was under pressure, resulting in a decrease in the unit
price of sales as compared to that for the Prior Year. In the face of
the decline in the average price, the Group effectively controlled its
production costs through various measures, partially offsefting the
negative impact of the decline in the average price. As a result, the
overall gross profit margin was slightly down by 45 basis points to
74.59% as compared fo that in 2022.
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Other income and gains

Other income and gains for the year increased by 8.11% to
HK$32,544,000 for the Current Year (2022: HK$30,104,000),
which was mainly due to the decrease in exchange loss of
HK$7,592,000 (2022: HK$21,228,000) recorded as a result of
the decline in the exchange rafe of the Renminbi. In addition, rental
income for the Current Year was HK$17,659,000 (2022:
HK$21,251,000) and subsidy income decreased to
HK$11,052,000 (2022: HK$20,075,000).

Operafing expenses

During the Current Year, the selling and distribution expenses
increased by 2.58% to HK$881,430,000 (2022:
HK$859,270,000), accounting for 68.77% (2022: 64.40%) of
the Group's revenue. The increase in expenses was mainly due fo
the fact that the Group began to allocate more resources in sales
and marketing in the second half of the year, namely by engaging a
spokesperson and organizing more promotional activities, with the
aim of enhancing the Group's brand awareness and driving the
Group's overall sales in the future. At the same time, the Group also
invested more resources in sfore renovations as part of its sales and
marketing strafegy.

Administrative expenses and impairment of financial assets fofalled
HK$169,776,000, representing a decrease of 9.68% from that for
the Prior Year, and the proportion of administrative expenses and
impairment of financial assets to the Group's revenue decreased to
13.25% (2022: 14.09%). A writeback of the bad-debt provision
for trade and other receivables of HK$5,492,000 (2022

impairment of HK$11,870,000] was included for the Current Year.

Annual Report 38 2023 / Embry Holdings Limited %

B o B )

H UG A R Uz
AEEHEHMBE AR K= IE M8ITI%E
32,544,0008 7t (Z & Z Z £ : 30,104,000
B)  TEHRARBEEXRTHRMBESZER
BEBLDEZ592000BT(ZEZZ
21 228 ,00087T) ° HIh > ZIKEEFWH‘:EI%UKE'J
B 817,659,000 w( = & = =
21 OOO/%TE)’LX&ﬁEEW]\—FE%i
OSQOOO/%TE(_v—_E 20,075,000
/%TG) °

RERE
RARFEE HERDHHEZIEM258%E
881,430,000 wx( — & — — #&F:

859,270,000 7%) » hAEEIW T 68.77%(Z
TTTH64.40%) c BRIBNEEHNER
R+ FERBRABZERNHERTIHZE
P GINESEN S ANREEZ(RIHEE
IEEEHEsERSTEENRBNZE » LUKk
BB AEERRNBIEHE - HILFAR > &£
TRABZERINIEREE  UEAHERT
HE R — (R o

THRSREMEERBEGES 169,776,000
,%75 » B F—EFE R 9.68% 157-&%.'4&
=EEE TR EISL(ZZ Z
AOQ%) H@@%ﬁfﬁfﬁuﬁzf’i%&ﬁfm)ﬁ
I BR [B]#88 5,492,0008 T (Z&E % :

JBE11,870,000875T) °

FSERARA

21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B B o i B o b (s

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other expenses

During the Current Year, impairment of right-of-use assets and other
expenses [the “Non-Operating Expenses”) amounted to approximately
HK$10,737,000 (2022: HK$23,570,000), representing a
decrease of 54.45% from 2022. It was mainly attributable to the
provision for impairment of right-of-use assets atf retail stores of

)
777
[ s

loss affributable to owners of the Company was HK$72,168,000 for
the Current Year, while loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the Prior Year was HK$51,239,000. The increase in loss was mainly
due to the recovery in the domestic retail market fell short of
expectations and the increase in marketing and promotional expenses.

\ / HK$6,040,000 for the Current Year, representing a decrease of
E . { HK$12,756,000 as compared with that of HK$ 18,796,000 for the
\ v Prior Year.
B N \‘.
: ; Loss
N
\
-\
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated
cash flows. Financial position of the Group remained healthy during
the Current Year. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately HK$283,610,000
(2022: HK$380,178,000), which was maintained at a healthy level. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's interest-
bearing bank borrowings amounted to HK$288,312,000 (2022: HK$327,472,000). As at 31 December 2023,
equity atfributable to owners of the Company was HK$2,158,382,000 (2022: HK$2,272,332,000). The gearing ratio
of the Group was approximately 13.4% (2022: 14.4%).
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Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group
amounted to HK$27,660,000 (2022: HK$20,934,000), which
was mainly used for the first phase of the photovoltaic power
generation project of the plant in Shandong Province, which was
converted into a fixed asset and utilised during the Current Year and
is expected to help the Group save on eleciricity expenses. As af 31
December 2023, the capital commitments of the Group amounted
to HK$105,725,000 (2022: HK$116,154,000), which were

confracted but not provided for in the financial statements.

Charge on the Group's assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group pledged its investment
properties, buildings and rightofuse assets in Hong Kong with net
book values of HK$92,000,000, HK$2,411,000 and
HK$ 11,272,000 respectively to banks to obtain loans.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the fotal issued share capital of the
Company was HK$4,224,000 (2022: HK$4,224,000),
comprising 422,416,638 (2022: 422,416,638) ordinary shares
of the par value of HK$0.01 each.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries
and associate companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of
any subsidiaries or associate companies.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out ifs transactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars
and the Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to protect against the volatility associated with foreign
currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities
created in the ordinary course of the business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, bank guarantees given in lieu of the
Group's property renfal deposits and utility deposits amounted to
HK$646,000 (2022: HK$428,000). Save as disclosed above,
the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any
litigation or arbitration of material importance.

PROSPECT

Llooking ahead to 2024, factors such as persistently high interest
rates, further escalation of geopolitical conflicts and weak
infernational trade will continue to pose challenges to global
economic growth. According to the report “World Economic
Situation and Prospects 2024" published by the United Nations,
global economic growth is expected to slow down to 2.4% in
2024, which is still lower than the pre-pandemic growth rate of 3%.
The uncertain outlook of the global economic and political
environment has impeded China’s economic recovery. The low
comparison base effect in 2023 will no longer exist in 2024, and
consumers will remain cautious. The weak, gradual recovery will
continue well into 2024. The growth rate of the sub-essential
underwear market will also be slower than that of the overall market.

Although the Chinese government has already reiterated that it will
remain committed fo its policy of expanding and stimulating the
domestic demand, China’s economic growth momentum will be
limited in the short ferm as the government has not yet intfroduced a
large-scale economic stimulus plan. Therefore, the Group predicts
that the growth rafe of the overall underwear industry will be limited
in 2024 so it will adopt a wait-
and-see attitude towards the
overall domestic economic
situation. The Group will pay
close attention to the national
policy direction, reap the
dividends from such policy in a
timely manner and adjust the
Group's strategy accordingly,
with @ view to bringing growth
fo the Group's revenue.

Embry Holdings Limited #1575 ARAE / Annual Report F ¥R 2023

B Y 5w M b (s

WAEE
N_E_=F+"B=+—H > 2RELXEH
MERERE R AHRIEEETIRERIRITE
fR7A 646,000 75 (ZE Z — 4 : 428,0007#%
70) ° PR EHUNERSN » AEBWEEMEBEAHNR
BN T MEAFAIHE o

HI

REZZTTNF > MRFESD 0 #GBUAE
RE—F TR BREZERSEARDERE
KRB EIL R RE - IRIBH SR M
QQOUAFHREETLBURE) RETES > 2
KAEER RN 2 NFEREE2.4% 0 AR
RESZBRT 3% BV RE o« 2K RBUAIRIE
FIRTAMATECERKERESD —F
“ZFBREHMERIEFT  EEHER
EEERE HEASERKTEEE_T N
Fo ERRUBRIIANRTHIEEROFIENE
BEm o

FEREBF S8R5 > \mARNE - RIHFBERH
BRAZAAERE > BEBIBFNIREE
RAFERBEE > FBHAR > REEEE REEE)
HAER AL *EERAN T _NFEER
TITERIEREBEAR > THEANBEREES
MERTHRERE - AEEEBYMEIBERD
> R E BR AL
o BAEERBK > B
ZAEAEE W m T ARIE
Eo



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B HLE W B o i ()

Given that consumers are still cautious about spending on
underwear, the Group will adopt a prudent approach and pay
close attention to market trends in terms of product designs,
production fechnology, markefing and sales channels so as to align
itself with consumers’ rational approach to consumption, with
emphases placed on quality, funcfions and appearance, and green
and sustainable consumption. In 2024, the Group will step up the
development of products suitable for online shopping, enhance
products’ adaptability, strengthen cooperation with low-carbon
material suppliers, comprehensively develop environmentally friendly
products, and continue to improve product quality with consumer
demand and needs at the core of its business. The Group is
confident that, with its years of experience and brand sfrength in the
lingerie industry in China as well as its adaptability, it will be able
fo cope with the current economic environment with great fortitude.

With the increasing diversification of consumer demand, the Group
expects the underwear market fo further refine its market segments in
2024, driving the overall growth of the industry. Therefore, in the
future, the Group will press on with the existing multi-brand strategy,
continue to explore different market segments, actively implement the
sales strategy cenfred on consumers and market demand, closely
follow the pace of changes in domestic consumption patterns, adjust
the number of offline stores in a timely manner, save costs to
vigorously develop online sales channels, step up interactive
publicity on social media, improve the quality of online
communication confent, ocfive|y promote traffic monetization, and
capifalise on the e-commerce boom to drive the online sales of its
brands. In terms of production, the Group will respond more
promptly, leverage the advantages of resource deployment through
its self-production and selfdistribution model as well as the ancillary
logistics facilities of intelligent warehouses for finished goods and
materials to enhance production and logistics efficiency, and actively
optimise ifs supply chain.

The Group will remain committed fo maintaining the high quality of
its products, continue to adopt a flexible and effective multi-brand
strafegy fo respond fo the everchanging market, and strive to create
longterm value for shareholders through the prudent and effective
allocation of resources.
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4 According to the national retail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and
the China National Commercial Information Centre in 2023, EMBRY FORM lingerie ranked top three in 2022 in
terms of composite market share in similar products in the industry as well as with respect to group sales

4 Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the award of National (Shenzhen) Excellent Enterprises with Foreign
Investment - Excellent Tax-Payment and Turnover (2022) by the China Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment and Shenzhen Association of Enferprises with Foreign Investment

4 Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded certificates of Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and
Service Quality and Enterprise of Leading Quality in the Garment Industry and the Underwear Industry by the
China Association for Quality Inspection

4 Embry (China) Garments Lid. received a Certificate of Science and Technology Advancement Award from the
China National Textile and Apparel Council ("CNTAC”)

4 Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded a plaque of recognition by the Knitwear Branch of National Technical
Committee on Textile Standardization and the Sportswear Branch of National Technical Committee on Sports Goods
Standardization in China as a Leading Entity of Standardization Work in 2023
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Awards (Continued)
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Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was rated by the Industry and Information Technology Department of Jiangsu as a
Green Factory in Jiangsu Province

Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd. was granted the 2023 Special Contribution Award and 2023 Upgrading and
Transformation Award by the People’s Government of Xuejia Town

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the Jinan Municipal Commitiee of the Communist Party of China
("CPC") and People’s Government of Jinan City as an Outstanding Enterprise in Quancheng

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the CPC Zhanggiu District Committee of Jinan City and the
Zhanggiu District Government of Jinan City as the Top 100 Real Economy Enterprises in Zhanggqjiu District in 2022

Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was awarded a plaque of recognition by the Standardization Technical Committee
of the CNTAC as a Leading Entity in Group Standardization Work in 2023

Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2022) by the China
National Garment Association

EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2023) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development
Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Cerfification Mark by the Hong Kong Tourism Board
Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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Directors and Senior Management

BEHRAEREYE

Executive Directors

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 87, is the Chairman, an Executive
Director and a director of cerfain subsidiaries of the Company.
Madam Ngok served as Chairman of the Company from March
2014 1o August 2018 and has been reappointed as Chairman of
the Company since March 2022. Madam Ngok is in charge of the
Croup's business planning. She joined the Group in 1980 and has
over 43 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok
graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing
Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China Agricultural
University). She is also a shareholder and director of Harmonious
World limited (the controlling shareholder of the Company), the
spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (the Chief
Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company) and
the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an Executive Director
of the Company).

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 61, is the Chief Executive Officer, an
Executive Director and a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Cheng is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the businesses of the
Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in 1993 and has over 31
years of experience in the lingerie industry. She obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Southern California and a Master of Business Administration
(Executive) degree from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms.
Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in Hong Kong
in 1999 and obtained the World Outstanding Chinese Award in
March 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected as the Honorary
Lifetime President of Shenzhen Underwear Association in March
2021. She is currently a member of the Yangpu Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in Shanghai, a
member of the China National Textile and Apparel Council, a Vice
Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a Vice President
of the China Association for Quality Inspection, a Vice Chairman of
Shanghai Garment Trade Association, a Vice President of Shenzhen
Garment Industry Association, and a Vice Chairman of The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Ms. Cheng is also a
director of Harmonious World limited (the controlling shareholder of
the Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu (the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company), and the
younger sister of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen (an Executive Director of
the Company).
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Directors and Senior Management (Contlnued)

mHMAEBREHE @

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 74, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research
and Development) of Embry (China) Garments Ltd. He first joined the
Group in May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017
He is in charge of the research and development centre of the
Group and is responsible for innovations of fechnologies, processes
and equipment for the production of products. Mr. Cheng has over
27 vyears of experience in technological research and development
in the manufacturing of display furniture, display dummies and also
garment processing. Mr. Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the step-son of Madam
Ngok Ming Chu (the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company) and an elder brother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (the Chief
Executive Officer and an Executive Direcfor of the Company).

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 70, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of
Embry (China) Garments Lid. and the General Manager of Embry
(Shandong) Garments Limited. She is also a director of cerfain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the funcfions
of strategic management and project management in the Chinese
Mainland. She joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 44
years of experience in management and administration. Ms. Lu
obtained a Master's degree in Business Administration from Beihang
University (previously known as Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics), the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), in 2001.
She has also obtfained an undergraduate diploma in international
trade from the University of International Business and Economics,
the PRC, in 1992. Ms. lu complefed a senior managers’ human
resources management fraining course held by Tsinghua University,
the PRC, in 2006. She obtained the International Project
Management Professional Certificate in 2002 and has been
accredited as a Certified Senior Project Manager (IPMA Level B)
since 2018. She was also qualified as a Professional of Carbon
Emission Management in the PRC in 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management (Contlnued)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi On, dlias, Derek Chan, aged 60, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in the
financial services industry and is a co-author of a book on listing
procedures and securities rules and regulations in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chan graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a Master’s degree in Business Administration in
1994 and from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's
degree in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics] in 1985. Mr.
Chan is currently the chairman of Halcyon Capital Limited and
Halcyon Securities Limited, which are principally engaged in
corporate finance and securities businesses in Hong Kong
respectively. He worked for The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) from 1989 to 1996 and was an
executive director of Haifong International Securities Group Limited
(the shares of which were delisted on the Stock Exchange in January
2024) and had been the head of s corporate finance division for
16 years until the end of 2012. Mr. Chan is currently serving as an
independent non-executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset
Management Limited (manager of Yuexiu Real Estate Investment
Trust, which is listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of Longfor Group Holdings
Limited and China Conch Venture Holdings Limited, the shares of
which are both listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan joined the
Company in May 2023.

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 65, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. lau is currently running his own
management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau
has previously worked at an international accounting firm for over
15 years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University] in 1981. Mr. Lau
is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants ["ACCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of
ACCA from May 2002 to September 201 1. Mr. Lau is currently the
company secretary of Yeebo (Infernational Holdings) Limited, Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited and Expert Systems Holdings
limited, and an independent non-executive director of Binhai
Investment Company Llimited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson Holding
lid., TCL Electronics Holdings limited and IVD Medical Holding
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
had been an independent non-executive director of Comba Telecom
Systems Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, until his resignation on 29 December 2023. Mr. Lau
joined the Company in November 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management (Contlnued)
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Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, dlias, Eddie Lee, aged 58, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. lee is a consultant of Howse Williams. He received
his LL.B (Honours) degree and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from
the University of Hong Kong in 1988 and 1989 respectively. He
was then admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1991 and in
England and Wales in 1997. Mr. lee is currently an independent
non-executive director of NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited,
Newton Resources ltd, Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited,
FSE Lifestyle Services Limited and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited,
the shares of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He
had been an independent non-executive director of China
BlueChemical ltd., Renze Harvest International Limited (formerly
known as Glory Sun Financial Group limited) and Red Star
Macalline Group Corporation lid., the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, until his resignation or cessation of directorship
on 27 May 2021, 17 July 2022 and 15 August 2023
respectively. Mr. lee |omed the Company in November 2006.

Prof. Lee T. S., dlias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 75, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. lee is currently the Professor
Emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and Information
Management of Hang Seng University of Hong Kong. He was the
Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008, Vice-President
(Academic & Research] of Hang Seng Management College from
2009 to 2014, the Head and Professor of the Department of
Supply Chain and Information Management of Hang Seng
Management College from 2009 to 2015 and a Chair Professor of
Feng Chia University, Taiwan from December 2015 to January
2019. Prof. lee obtained his PhD in Business Administration and
Master's degree in Business Administration from the University of
Missouri-Columbia, the United States in 1982 and 19/8
respectively. He also holds a Master's degree in Management
Science and a Bachelor's degree in Electronic Engineering from the
National Chiao Tung University of Taiwan. Prof. lee's research and
teaching inferests include supply chain management, quality
management and business process reengineering. He has published
his research in many academic journals. Prof. lee joined the
Company in November 2006.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Senior Management

Ms. Law Yuk Ying, aged 44, is the Group Financial Controller. Ms.
Law is responsible for the supervision and management of the
Group's overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined
the Group in 2008 as the Group Accounting Manager and was
appointed fo the present position in 2019. Ms. law obtained a
Bachelor's degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Llaw previously worked at an infernational accounting firm and
has over 21 years of experience in auditing, financial accounting,
corporate investment and financing, as well as management.

Mr. Chung King Yeung, aged 57, is the Group Assistant Internal
Audit Director and is in charge of the internal audit functions of the
Group. Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2021 and has over 31
years of experience in external audit, financial analysis and internal
audit. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Lla Trobe
University, Ausfralia, a Master's degree in Business from Monash
University, Australia, and a Juris Doctor degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chung is a CPA member of the
Certified Practising Accountants Australia and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#155 A RAE / Annual Report F R 2023

=R BE

BEHRQL 445 #EEYBEE - BL L
EEERKEEAEREEEVBEEFERRES
BiE - BN NEMATEEREE S5
I W B -—NFRESERE 2R/ - 2
YEREBEIARSEEEH BB LB - K
AR ARG AEREBGMAEE
B BUL BN —REIRGSENITIE > 1%
B WBEs bEREARME - HEESE
HHEE 2] FE o

BRERE > 57 AEERNETRIRE
BEEENNENEFTEE - BRENR T - —
FMARER > FEINBES MBI A
BT HEEBBE 3 FAVEER o RS RN
SRARBEEEET80  BNEKMERER
BRIPAUKREERIXARBEZRIELE( - &
FERENG NG RERESIAEES -



Corporate Governance Report
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The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance
provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a
healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and
enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as contained in Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all
code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable
and a maijority of the recommended best practices under the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Review
Period”).

Corporate Culture

A healthy corporate culture set up by the Company, including
integrity and accountability, is vital for the Company to achieve its
vision and mission towards sustainable growth. All Direcfors must act
with integrity. It is the Board’s role to lead by example, foster and
promote a corporate culture with core principles to guide the
behaviours of its employees, and ensure that the Company’s vision,
values and business strategies are aligned fo it.

Integrity underpins the behaviours of the Group’s employees in
working with each other and conducting business activities with
business partners. The Group’s Code of Ethics and Conduct has
defined the behavioural guidelines for its employees fo reinforce the
Group's values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly.

The culture of accountability begins from the strong leadership of the
Board, with delegation of authorities to its Board Committees, the
Chief Executive Officer, the management of the respective business
units, to every individual employee throughout the Group. With clear
objectives and goals set in business plans, budgets and forecast
authorised by the Board, augmented by open communication and
fair staff performance evaluation mechanisms, the management and
employees are committed to and accountable for achieving the
fargets for the longterm success of the Company.
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Strategic Planning

The Board carries out ongoing comprehensive review of the Group's
formulation of business strategies and policies, which cover
positioning in the major markets and product lines, leading drivers of
change in the industry and markets, and development sirategies o
seize growth opportunities in the long run. Details of the Company’s
strategic priorities are available in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management and Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual
Report.

Governance Structure

BIRRM

B A 1
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(4 Executive Directors
and 4 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

S
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Remuneration Committee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)

Audit Committee
(3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)
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Nomination Commitiee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)
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G
(REPEE T RIAEES )
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Directors

Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the
Board's responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, namely
Madam Ngok Ming Chu [Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (Chief
Executive Officer], Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. lu Qun; and
four Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi
On, Mr. lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S. The
number of Independent Non-Executive Directors represents half of the
Board. The biographical details of and relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed under the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 34 of this
annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as all the Executive Direcfors possess exfensive
experience in management and the research and development,
design, production and marketing of underwear products while the
four Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience in corporate finance, accounting,
law and management respectively. The Directors are of the opinion
that the present structure of the Board can ensure the independence
and objectivity of the Board and provide a system of checks and
balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company.

Board Diversity

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board sefting
out the approach fo maintaining a Board with a diversity of direcfors.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting its sustainable development. All
Boord appointments will continue fo be based on meritocracy with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and confribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

e atfleast two members of the Board shall be female;

*  af least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
Independent Non-Executive Directors;

®  at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
accounting or financial management related professional
qualifications and experience; and

®  af least 80% of the members of the Board shall have more
than 20 years of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in.

The Board is committed to further improving the diversity of the
Board as when suitable candidates are identified.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy and considered it to be effective for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Gender Diversity

The Company values gender diversity across all levels of the Group.
The following table sefs out the gender ratio in the workforce of the
Group, including the Board and senior management as at the date
of this annual report:
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Female Male

g 5%

Board ==y 37.5% (3) 62.5% (5)
Senior Management SHREIEE 50% (1) 50% (1)
Other employees Higs 93.4% (4,118) 6.6% (293)
Overall workforce 2HEET 93.2% (4,122) 6.8% (299)

Further details on the workforce of the Group by gender can be
found in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108(A) of the articles of association of the Company provides
that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rofation provided that every
Director shall be subject to refirement at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meefing and shall be eligible for
re-election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the
Company is liable to be vacated in cerfain circumstances and the
Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary
resolution at a general meefing as prescribed in Arficle 114.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-
election at annual general meetings are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. New Directors
appointed by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders af
the next following annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
according to the criteria sef out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Lisfing
Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive
Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria sef out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Newly appointed Director has received induction and legal advice
on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operation of the Company and
full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant sfatutory requirements. Mr. Chan Chi On
has obtained the said legal advice on 25 May 2023 and has
confirmed he understood his obligations as a Director.

Each of the Executive Directors has respectively entered info a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years.
Each Executive Director is entifled to a discretionary management
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable
fo all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated net profit of the
Group (affer taxation and non-controlling interests and payment of
such bonuses) for that financial year of the Company. An Executive
Director shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors regarding
the amount of the management bonus payable o him/her.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for
a ferm of two years with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
key terms and conditions of his appointment. Save for the directors’
fees and the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(as defined on page 65 of this annual report] to each of them, none
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is expected to receive
any other remuneration for holding his office as an Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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Board Independence

The Company has established mechanisms fo ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board and conducted a review
of such mechanisms on an annual basis.

All Directors are entifled to seek, at the Company's expense,
independent professional advice reasonably necessary for
discharging their duties as Directors.

The Nomination Committee annually assesses the independence of
each Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of
appointment. In February 2024, the Company received from each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence with reference fo the factors set out in Rule 3.13
of the listing Rules. Based on such confirmations and the report of
the Nomination Committee, the Company considers that all the
Independent Non-Executive Directors continue to demonsirate sfrong
independence and all remain independent.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the

mechanisms and considered them to be effective for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead fo ensure that
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of
association of the Company, the ferms of reference of the respective
Boord committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consulation with all the Directors and the Company Secrefary. Prior
nofice of each regular Board meeting is given fo all the Directors at
least 14 days in advance and the Direcfors are invited fo include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying
Boord papers are sent to all the Directors af least 3 days (or such
other period as agreed) prior fo meefings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meefings involve the active parficipation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meefings, reasonable notice is given.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#155 A RAE / Annual Report F R 2023

ERERIN
KAB BT UG U ERES T L
HRERIETFESRSE o

SEIUER

EREFEESBTHESHEMS KRN
BIEEER > BRBARATAE -

TE%éégéfﬁéﬁﬁg\ﬁiﬁlﬁﬂ’_%%fﬁﬁﬁ
WRVEI M- _ T2 "MFE_F » ZIS’ATH&Z
BAILIFRITES 2R EMHRAISE 3.131% FELE’J
PNE7 *%ﬁﬁfE%_LIEE’]EEEE%O BN E

BRIEREZEENRE  AREARDA/MES
VIRATESRERRT DB - 2RERE
&1L ©

EXZERAHFINERRBEMME > WBHN
BE_E_-_F+_A=T—HLEFEZKS
B e

%%@@Eﬁ&%%éﬁ =5 =5 D%*EEF_
BEXERAMEERIEREENES E’]?’j_—t
R - EFgTIFASESFTELURRESTS
ENEELZEEGRIIRBIN KN AEMAE ﬁ%&
WA BRESLZEGNHEHNE K EHRAN
ERBRH -

RERESS SRR IF%%EW%E“%%
&Z\:_‘ﬂé‘iﬂzﬂjuuuﬁj'fé ERnitESREE
BEZ - SRAREHNEFTEEER  2ESE
%ﬁé’fﬁﬁ"\—l—ﬂfﬁ’ﬁﬁ%}\jﬂ EFWEE
BREIENNMABNEIE - FREKBHNES
EXHRNERRRD =X (H R ERIEME
BIR) X T2EESE -

EEeREFARELTOR - I EER
HERAHESERIER WSESTER
HELREFHSHE  NBEBHEMEFIEHN
FEREIBSE o

EXSEHEENAHRALIE L/(%Fﬁ*ﬁ_%
EEERERETIHR ERNERERIEE
Al aEEMaR -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

10 58 B 16 WOl ()

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secrefary fo ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meefings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the
Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are available for inspection
by any Director, auditor or any relevant eligible parties who can
have access fo such minutes.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The record of attfendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general meeting
held during 2023 is sef out in the following table:

AR ERAERASDNENERRE U
RRE E B2 RFTA B AR RAHIES
% o

ERCNEECRERNCEREFEMERES
BERFE  HPEEREFRUNMERISE
BERERNRHATR - EAESE ~ LT
FAEERIMSERCHENERA LI ERMR
BEEFZS T ENEFTHETTHCH

ESHHECER
TRHEYESEEN T _ZFERETHNESS
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SO

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BRHERYBTRY
Annual
Audit Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Commitiee = Committee =~ Commitiee Meeting
Directors EE Bz
EFT BREET REZET HMZSg BEXE
Executive Directors BITEE
Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman) &BR¥k (£/E) 6/6 N/AFRER N/AFRER N/ATER 1/1
Cheng Pik Ho liza BEE
(Chief Executive Officer) (1TE#E#) 6/6 N/A FEA 2/2 2/2 1/1
Cheng Chuen Chuen BEE 6/6 N/ATER N/ARER N/ATER 1/1
Lu Qun i 6/6 N/AFRER N/ATER N/ATER 1/1
Independent Non-Executive EiZJEMITES
Directors
Chan Chi On* pREZ 4/4 1/1 N/AFRER N/ATER N/ATBER
Lau Siv Ki RIBE 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee Kwan Hung** i) i 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee T. S. X% 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Average Attendance Rate 39 FEE 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Mr. Chan Chi On was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit committee with
effect from 25 May 2023. Subsequent fo his appointment, four Board
meetings and one commitiee meeting were held during the year.

**  The resignation of Mr. lee Kwan Hung as a member of the Audit
Committee was accepted on 25 May 2023. Prior fo his resignation,
two committee meetings were held during the year.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.
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Directors and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim fo
indemnify its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not
limited to, any proceedings brought against them during the
performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service
agreements entered info with the Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [“Model Code”) (with
certain modifications but on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code) as sef ouf in Appendix C3 fo
the Listing Rules as its own code ["Securities Dealing Code”) to
regulate the securities dealings by all the Directors and relevant
employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and
members of the senior management who confirmed that they
complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the Review
Period.

Continuous Professional Development

Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings
and updates on the Group's business, operations, infernal confrols
and corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were
provided to the Direcfors. They also attended courses and seminars
organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the
duties and responsibilities of a director during the Review Period. Al
Directors have provided the Company with their respective fraining
records pursuant to the CG Code.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable
Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided with
independent professional advice in appropriafe circumstances, at
the Company’s expense in order fo assist them fo discharge their
duties to the Company.
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Functions of The Board

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Group's businesses. During the
Review Period, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held by two different Executive
Directors, namely Madam Ngok Ming Chu and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho
Liza respectively. Their roles and duties are segregated, with a clear
division of responsibilities. Madam Ngok Ming Chu, the Chairman,
is fo provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the Board
works effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, the Chief Executive
Officer, is answerable to the Board for the operations of the Group.
Madam Ngok is the mother of Ms. Cheng.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging ifs duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

*  the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution,

the Nomination Committee and the

powers and duties are clearly defined by ifs terms of reference,
and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc
Board committees may also be established as required from
fime fo time by the Board;

e the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-
doy management of the businesses of the Group, is
accountable to the Board; and

®  the management team of the Group, being delegated with the
responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions, is
answerable to the Executive Directors.
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The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure
that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of
the Group's businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the
Group's performance, financial position and operating results, in
order that the Board is able to make an informed assessment of
matters put before the Board for approval. During the Review Period,
each Executive Director had frequent meetings with operational
managers in order to maintain an effective feedback system and
enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and
effectively. The management also provided monthly updates to the
Directors.

The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and
include:

® any matters relating to the formulation of the Company's
strategy and direction;

®  any mafters relating to financial controls, compliance and risk
management,

® any changes in corporate structure such as the changes
relating to the Company’s capital structure, including share
buy-back or issue of new securities;

®  major appointments such as appointments to the Board, affer
taking info account the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer; recommendations to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditor after taking info
consideration the recommendations of the Audit Committee;
and the appointment or removal of the Group Financial
Controller and the Company Secretary;

®  any matters defermined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies,
material contracts, major financing arrangements and major
investments; and

e the corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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With respect fo the corporate governance functions, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company's prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.

Board Committees

A tofal of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have
been formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and
responsibilities by the Board. All the Board committees follow the
same principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board
receives the minutes of each commitiee meeting on a regular basis,
including their decisions and recommendations.

Audit Committee
At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Direcfors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Chi On
Prof. lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board
among the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee
consisfs of not less than three members. The Board considers that
each Audit Committee member has broad commercial experience
and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the fields of
corporate finance, accounting and management, and that the
composition and members of the Audit Committee comply with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Board, affer
consultation with the chairman of the Audit Committee, provides
sufficient resources to the Audit Committee to enable it to discharge
its duties.
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The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers sef forth in
its terms of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit
Comnmittee is required fo have at least one meetfing with the external
auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial
year. The function of the committee is o provide assistance to the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment community and other
stakeholders relating fo:

e the infegrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

*  the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and
independence;

e the performance of the Company's infernal audit function and
the performance of the external auditor; and

° the effectiveness of the risk management and infernal control
systems of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings
including one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of
attendance of individual Directors af the committee meetings is sef
out on page 41 of this annual report.

The following is o summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Review Period:

(] review of the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i)  review of the external auditor's independence and their report,
with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment of
the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its

2023 annual general meeting;

(iii)  review of confinuing connected fransactions;
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(iv] review of the interim report and results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023, with a
recommendation fo the Board for approval;

[v]  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared
by the Finance Division;

(vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor;

(vii) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and infermnal
control systfems of the Company and ifs subsidiaries;

(viii) review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

(ix) review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit

and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(x]  review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2023, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Auditor's Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable
to Emnst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the
following services provided during the Review Period:

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
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Remuneration
Paid/Payable
Services Rendered FRig (AR 7% e FESEE
Audit services EALARTS HK$2,668,000 87T
Non-audit services* JEEZIRFS * HK$752,000 % 7T
Total: 4B=t HK$3,420,000 % 7T

* Non-audit services include tax compliance and advisory, review and

other reporting services.

The Audit Committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor is
reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the
auditor and the management of the Company during the Review
Period.
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Nomination Committee

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising
one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely:

Prof. lee T. S. (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. Llee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Committiee are fo review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to idenfify individuals
who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. After
considering the independence and qualifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as
to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board, after consultation with the
chairman of the Nomination Commitiee, provides sufficient resources
to the Nomination Commitiee to enable if to discharge its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2023. The record
of attendance of individual Direcfors at the committee meefing is set

out on page 41 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Review Period:

()  assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

[i)  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors:

i)  review of the existing sfructure, size and composition of the
Board:;

[iv)] recommendation fo the Board on the appointment of a new
Independent Non-Executive Director;

[v]  recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
Executive Directors; and

(vi) recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following maijor criteria set out in the Company's director nomination
policy had been considered by the Nomination Commitiee:

e characfer and infegrity;

e qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience relevant to the Company’s business
and strategy, and diversity aspects under the board diversity
policy of the Company;

*  requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines sef out in the Listing Rules;

e willingness and ability to devote adequate time fo discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committeels)
of the Company; and

e the overall ability to exercise good judgement and to provide
valuable insights and diverse perspective fo the Board.

The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information of the
candidate, had evaluated such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate was qualified for
directorship and made recommendation to the Board to appoint the
candidate for direcforship.

With respect to the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the overall
contribution and services to the Company of the retiring Directors
and the level of participation and performance on the Board fo
defermine whether the refiring Directors would continue fo meet the
criferia as set out above and made recommendation to the Board in
respect of the proposed re-election of Directors at the general
meeting. The relevant information of the retiring Directors together
with the recommendation of the Board would then be disclosed in
the circular accompanying the notice of the general meeting and
published on the Company's website at www.embrygroup.com in
accordance with the listing Rules and applicable laws and
regulations.
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As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director)
abstained from assessing his own independence and re-
appointment.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Remuneration Committee

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. lee T. S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are fo assist the
Board in establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy on Direcfors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the packages (which include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of
individual Executive Directors and senior management [i.e. the
model described in code provision E.1.2(c|(ii] of the CG Code was
adopted) as well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.
The Board,
Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Comnmittee to enable it fo discharge its duties.

after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate the
Directors reasonably for their ime and efforts spent. The Remuneration
Committee regularly reviews and makes recommendations fo the
Board on the remuneration of Direcfors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2023. The
record of aftendance of individual Directors at the committee
meetings is sef out on page 41 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

recommendation to the Board on the payment of bonuses fo
the senior management sfaff in the Chinese Mainland;

recommendation to the Board on the payment of discrefionary
bonuses to the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the
final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December

2022,

review of the new service agreements between the Company
and Executive Directors, with advice and a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review of the consultancy agreement between the Company
and the former Chairman of the Company, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

review of the letter of appointment of a new Independent Non-
Executive Director, with a recommendation to the Board for
approval;

recommendation to the Board on the adjustment of
remuneration for existing Directors; and

recommendation to the Board on the vesting of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to Directors and selected
employees.

As a good corporate governance practice, Remuneration Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director) had
not involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to code provision E.

1.5 of the CG Code, details of the

annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:
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Defails of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2023 are sef out in note 10 fo the financial statements.
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements with the assistance of the accounting team in accordance
with statutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting
standards for each financial period, which shall give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and of the
consolidated financial performance and cash flows for such financial
period. During the Review Period, the Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue in business.
Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the

auditor's reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the

Croup is sef out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 73 fo
1 of this annual report.

The Company announces ifs interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable affer the end of the relevant financial period
and the financial year respectively pursuant o the requirements of
the Listing Rules, disclosing all such information as would enable the
Company's shareholders to assess the performance, financial
position and prospects of the Company.

Dividend Policy

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles of
association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations. In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capifal
requirements and future growth as well as ifs shareholder value. The
Company has no fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The Board considers
that, in general, the amount of dividends to be declared will depend
on the Group's financial results, cash position, capital requirements,
business conditions and strategies, and other factors as may be
considered relevant at such time by the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk
management and infernal confrol systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Group has established
comprehensive policies and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the
Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. It carries out the financial,
operational, project management and information security control
reviews according fo the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the
Audit Centre conducts other reviews and work as and when
required. The management, in coordination with the Audit Centre,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress. Findings and
recommendations are reported regularly to members of the Audit
Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the Board had
conducted a review of its risk management and internal control
systems of the Group under code provision D.2.1 and considered
them effective and adequate without the occurrence of any
significant failure.

The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent
assurance fo the Board and management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Director of Audit
Centre reports functionally to the Audit Committee and
administratively fo the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness
and efficiency.
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The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget during the Review Period and considered that the Group
had adequate sfaff resources with the competence, qualifications
and experience necessary for the effective performance of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to
providing a mechanism for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
intfernal control or other matters. Internal procedures are put in place
whereby employees of the Group can report possible risks and
inside information identified in daily operation to the Board.
Furthermore, the Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company's Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Various policies and procedures including, among others, the Code
of Ethics and Conduct, Gifts and Entertainment Policy, Anti-Bribery
Agreement are in place fo safeguard against corruption and bribery.
The Group has established reporting channels that are open and
available for employees and business partners of the Group to report
any suspected corruption and bribery. The Audit Centre is
responsible for investigating the reported incidents and taking
appropriate measures. The Group continues fo carry out anti-
corruption and anti-bribery activities to cultivate a culture of integrity,
and actively organises anti-corruption fraining and inspections to
ensure the effectiveness of anti-corruption and anti-bribery measures.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretfary. The
primary contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can confact,
is Ms. Law Yuk Ying, the Group Financial Controller of the
Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has faken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional fraining to update her skills and knowledge.
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Investor Relations and Communication
With Shareholders

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to
promote effective communication with shareholders and to solicit
and understand the views of its stakeholders and the investment
community. The Board has reviewed implementation of the policy
during the year and considered that the policy is effective with the
measures disclosed below.

The Company has an ongoing dialogue with shareholders through
various communication channels as follows:

®  publication of notices, announcements, circulars, interim
reports, annual reports and press releases on the Company’s
website

®  publication of key corporate governance policies on the
Company's website

*  holding of annual general meeting and other general meetings
of the Company

The Company has also engaged a professional public relations
consultancy company fo organise various investor relations programs
(including regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts)
aiming at increasing the fransparency of the Company, enhancing
communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their
understanding of and confidence in the Group's businesses and
promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

At the Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2023, the Restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association was adopted by a Special
Resolution in substitution for and to the exclusion of the then existing
Memorandum and Articles of Association for the purposes of,
among others, (i) conforming to the latest amendments made to the
Listing Rules and the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands; (i)
permitting general meetings to be held as electronic meefings or
hybrid meetings; and (iii) making other consequential and
housekeeping changes. Full text of the amendments was sef out in
the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2023. An uptodate
version of the articles of association of the Company is available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders
may refer fo the articles of association for further details of the rights
of shareholders.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by Shareholders
In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one fenth of the voting rights,
on a one vote per share basis, in the share capital of the Company.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meefing to be called by the Directors for the fransaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in
writing to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department af the
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share cerfificates or
dividend warrants, the Company's registered shareholders can
confact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited. For other enquires or requests, the
Company's investors can contact iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company's
investor relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information
is available on the Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

Procedures for Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes fo nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director, the following documents must be
validly sent to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of infention to
propose a resolution at the general meeting; and [ii) a notice
executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness
fo be appointed. The period for lodgment of the nofices of (i) and {ii)
above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting and end no lafer than seven days
prior fo the date of such meeting.

To put forward proposals other than the above at a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a written nofice of those
proposals with their defailed contact information to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned
at general meetings varies according fo the nature of the proposal.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group) for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are sef ouf in note 37 to
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2023 and the
Group's financial position af that dafe are set out in the financial
statements on pages 82 to 180.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assefs and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out below.

B 35 R
UTFRASEHERERBHBELE L EER
HERGENERBRTSEEREAMBER
RMFINT -

Results e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=1+—HL=EE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZEC=fF T F T —F _T_TE _T-hEF
HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET FAET FAET FET
REVENUE Y 1,281,753 1,334,269 1,652,408 1,650,483 2,266,867
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE PRAIER,
TAX (E548) (93,255) (51,628) (16,383) 20,519 125,275
INCOME TAX FRiSTRIRSR
CREDIT/(EXPENSE) (%) 21,087 389 (11,102) (23,343) (44,953
PROFIT/(LOSS]) FOR FEE#HF(E58)
THE YEAR (72,168) (51,239) (27,485) (2,824) 80,322
Attributable to: DU A LFEN
Owners of the Company KATVEE A (72,168) (51,239) (27,485) (2,824) 80,322
Assets and Liabilities BEEREHRE
As at 31 December
w+=—A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC=F T F T —F _T_TFE _T-hF
HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET FHET FHET FHET
TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 2,862,467 2,976,805 3,304,777 3,429,445 3,504,496
TOTAL UABILITIES B EEE (704,085) (704,473) (788,504) (941,056) (1,155,221)

2,158,382 2,272,332

2,516,273 2,488,389 2,349,275

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are sef out in note 28 fo the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a proata basis
fo existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$202,203,000. The amount of
HK$902,203,000, includes the Company’s share premium and
contributed surplus of HK$767,760,000 in aggregate at 31
December 2023, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the dafe on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
and purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year,
respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

JBE AR
AABTRAEENRABE R ERNHBRE
HiEE28 o

1 5 Ji
REAQATEBERARNRESBELE] >
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7
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Al 73 Uk il s
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ERENTFEE2E(—NAN—FEF= &
REaREBI)ENOHDIRER A
902,203,00078 75 o A#1902,203,000#EtH
SHEOEARTIN _E_=ZF+_B=+—H
NN EEREBRFS /67,760,000 #
7T MEERZESRREEHREAREBSE
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen

Ms. Lu Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chi On (alias, Derek Chan)
(oppointed on 25 May 2023)

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

Mr. lee Kwan Hung [alias, Eddie Lee)

Prof. lee T. S. (alias, Lee Tien-Sheng)

In accordance with article 108 of the Company's articles of
association, Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza and
Ms. Lu Qun will retire by rofation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting

("AGM").

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of Mr. Chan Chi On, Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. Lee Kwan
Hung and Prof. lee T. S. confirming his independence with reference
to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 pursuant to Paragraph 12B set out
in Appendix D2 fo the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the "Stock Exchange')
(the 'Listing Rules'), and as at the date of this report, the Company
still considers them fo be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the direcfors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 30 fo 34 of the
annual report.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's arficles of association, subject to the
applicable laws, every director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her office.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against direcfors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, Mr. Cheng
Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each enfered info a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years commencing
on 25 March 2022, 1 December 2023, 22 September 2023 and
2 February 2023, respectively.

Each of Mr. lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S. has
been appointed for a term of two years commencing on 25
November 2022 and Mr. Chan Chi On has been appointed for a
ferm of two years commencing on 25 May 2023.

Under the service agreement, affer each complefe year of service,
the remuneration payable to each of the executive directors may,
subject to the discrefion of the Company's board of directors, be
increased by not more than 10% and the executive directors are
entifled to a discrefionary management bonus provided that the total
amount of bonuses payable fo all the executive directors for that
year shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax
of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re<lection at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Emolument Policy and Directors’
Remuneration

The Group’s emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.
Subiject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
confribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy
with regard to the remuneration packages of the Group's executive
directors is to enable the Group fo refain and mofivate executive
directors by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group's remuneration packages
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The direcfors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval af general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for transactions as disclosed in note 13 to the financial
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material inferest, either directly or indirectly, in any fransactions,
arrangements or confracts of significance fo the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance [the
"SFQO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified fo the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

AT B AR B By B A B
o W &% IR A

R ZEC=F+ZR=+—H > EFRITHR
HNARBNEAREE (ERRESFAAE
1561 (M5B 5 R FAE IR B 1) S5 XVER) AR 4 Ko AH R
B0 R B A DA BIRIEE 55 R E 1R 5
BI2FFENTLMAN R ARE » 3R
BIE EHETAEFETESFXZHRETH
(MREEST R ) @RI A A B Fe Bt 32 PR B ot S sk
BT

RAERBEBRINEE !

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRfsER(D BetE (AT BT
EENE B REEEE iR RETETR fTETIR%E B2
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled Ordinary shares (Nofe 1) 143,041,031 33.86
A% T+ corporations
SEFIAEEm i@ (et 1)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,978,901 0.71
Em#EBA B
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,300,000 0.31
Em#EBA BERCRE (B3t 2)
Interest of spouse Ordinary shares (Note 3 3,628,220 0.86
[T i@ (s 3)
Interest of spouse Share options (Nofe 3) 1,430,000 0.34
FCiB iR BERRRE (B3t 3)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 60,087,577 14.22
BEEZLT Em#EBA Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,220,000 0.29
Em#EBA BERCRE (B3t 2)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
HEREE Em#EBA Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 295,000 0.07

Bm#EAA

fEIRTE (W5t 2)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s y3
Interests and Short Positions in Shares 1y Wy BE
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and Underlying Shares (continved)

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued)

BAARY

A8 I A B+ B B

ﬂ\
FIRA ()

BRNTRE (&

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRisRR(R, BRtE  EFATBHT
R B kiEmitE R BRETETR fTEIA%E RAFNESLE
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 1,024,057 0.24
¥ 3o BEGBEAA =Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 665,000 0.16
BB A FERIE (W72 2)
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 768,000 0.18
FABESE BEBEAA =Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02
BB A FERRtE (W72 2)
Mr. Llee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 487,000 0.12
e BB A =Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02
BB A FERRtE (W72 2)
Prof. lee T.S. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 604,000 0.14
FREHE BB A =Bk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 100,000 0.02

Embry Holdings Limited Z %[

BafEAA

BRI (et 2)

EHERBRAE / Annual Report &3k 2023



Report of the Directors (Continued)

:

il

o W om)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continved)

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued)

Nofes:

1.

These shares are held by Harmonious World Limited (“Harmonious
World”). Harmonious World is owned as to 70.89% by Madam
Ngok Ming Chu and as to 29.11% by Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
fo the respective directors upon the exercise of the share options
granted to each of them under the share option scheme adopted on
28 May 2020 (the "Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share
Option Scheme are disclosed in note 30 fo the financial statements.

Madam Ngok Ming Chu is deemed to be inferested in the shares
and share options personally held by her spouse, Mr. Cheng Man
Tai, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

long positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation:

EH

AT B AR I oy B R A Mt
i 4 HE 48

B AT B
WS RRE @)

RAEABEBRIEE | (B

1. EZERRHEHarmonious World Limited (THarmonious
World]) #E ° Harmonious World %3 Bl B3 & BH
R LR RAEEER 70.80% % 29.11%

i o

2. WBENEFETERENR_ZF_ZFFHA
“HN\BERMEEER ST B (TRERRESTEL) PR
BRI M A RS R EITHRMEE - B8
B st BIEFIBI M B R R ML SO4KEE o

3. RBEBFRAEMEGIEXVER - FEATRL LRR
RBEAHRBRHEREEBARENRERE
Pt R o

POAREEEE S @R R -

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
& AEES % B
B AT 55k 2Tk
ERNR MREEE RS BIRRR Liab 4= E=tE HESLE
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious Confroling  40.09 shares of Beneficial 70.89
World shareholder US$1 each owner
ERR% 7+ ERRER  40.09KER BEmsEB A
ENEREST
B

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required fo
be recorded pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

frESGRBEIN  RZB_=F+"B=+—
B BIEARATEERITEBRNAEATNE
R REE BRI (D SRR () P A IR IRE
SREIEFRBE 352K R AB LA R
Ra > SIRERETRIZABAAA B R
PRBVIEI A KA ©
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Inferest and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above
and in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during
the year were rights fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted fo any of the
directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme and the share option movements
during the year are disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the fotal number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 42,241,663 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The numbers of share options available for grant under the mandate
limit of the Share Option Scheme as at 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023 were 24,151,663 and 24,786,663 respectively.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2023, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company (other than the interests of the
directors of the Company as disclosed above] were recorded in the
register of inferests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
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Persons’ Interests in Shares and B i Ay o E 4 (42)
Underlying Shares (continved)
long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEREEBERNFE :
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
e n,BetE FRisR&(R AR iE HEATBRIT
%3 B kEEEE fT£IR fTETA%E BB
Harmonious World Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 143,041,031 33.86
EmEA A e
[Note 1)
(Bt 1)
Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 30,000,000 7.10
EmER A EER
Value China Fund Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 21,475,000 5.08
EmEEA Bk
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 3,628,220 0.86
EHELE EmERE A ZIBRR
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 2) 1,430,000 0.34
EmBEEA FERCHE (W32 2)
Interest of spouse  Ordinary shares (Nofe 3) 146,019,932 34.57
i oty EiEk (M 3)
Interest of spouse Share options (Nofe 3) 1,300,000 0.31
PofBiEm FBRCRE (M52 3)
Ms. Wong Oi Fan Interest of spouse Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
FESGL T i oty EER
[Note 4)
(Bt 4)
Interest of spouse Share options 295,000 0.07
i oy RERGIE
[Note 4)
(Frat4)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
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3 B o B At N\ A % 4y B i

Persons’ Interests in Shares and 3R Jie Ay 4 B 2 ()
Underlying Shares (continved)
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
[0 g Frishatn /R EERAREHT
H"e BinkEmttE fT£IR fTEIAHAE RAFNESLE
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,366,661 5.29
WERBEL+ BERERBA EiEk
[Note 5)
(Hst 5)
Beneficial owner Share options 185,000 0.04
BnEAA BEiiE
[Note 6)
(st o)
Mr. Pun Hiu Lok Interest of spouse Ordinary shares 22,366,661 5.29
Rt FofBfm EiEk
[Note /)
(st 7)
Interest of spouse Share options 185,000 0.04
FofBfm e
[Note /)
(Hs£7)
Mr. Cheng Ka Hei Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,064,732 5.22
BRELE BB EiEk
[Note 8)
(W52 8)
Ms. Mei Zhen Interest of spouse Ordinary shares 22,064,732 5.22
(=Y ke FofBfm EiEk
[Note 9)
(R 9)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continved)

Nofes:

1. The relationship between Harmonious World, Madam Ngok Ming
Chu and Mr. Cheng Man Tai is disclosed under the section "Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above.

2. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
fo Mr. Cheng Man Tai upon the exercise of the share options granted
to him under the Share Option Scheme.

3. Mr. Cheng Man Tai is deemed fo be interested in the shares and
share options personally held or controlled by his spouse, Madam
Ngok Ming Chu, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

4. Ms. Wong Oi Fan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an
executive director of the Company. She is deemed fo be interested in
the shares and share options personally held by her spouse pursuant
fo Part XV of the SFO.

5. Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai
and Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

6. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
fo Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan upon the exercise of the share options
granted to her under the Share Option Scheme.

7. Mr. Pun Hiu Lok is the spouse of Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan. He is deemed
fo be interested in the shares and share options personally held by his
spouse pursuant fo Part XV of the SFO.

8. Mr. Cheng Ka Hei is the grandson of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

9. Ms. Mei Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ka Hei. She is deemed to
be inferested in the shares personally held by her spouse pursuant fo

Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose inferests are set out
in the secfion "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required fo be recorded pursuant fo section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's fotal number of issued shares were held by the public as
at the date of this report.

32 B R B H Al N A R B A B b
B 5 4y B HE 23 (8)

Hiat :

1. Harmonious World ~ BBk T K BB ZR S0 4
ZERFRKEER L X TER RITHRAEEN R
RN E AR E I TET ©

2. BRI EEITRIRBEBRES BIPNER
BREMREERERETHRMNEUE -

3. RIEEGFREIERAIEXVEL » BHRAERR
A BB ERR L L@ AR A IER IR
RRBERE B o

4. FEDRLIRERERTESRBERLEZR
18 o IRIFEF R RGIB XV I - RARR 2 TE
EERBEAARSANRERBREZ #x

5. ERERBUTAMEERTERERHRT L ZHK

6. WERELZ LETRIREHERES BIPTER
BRI ER S REITIRMEE -

7. BB AMRPEL LR  REESK
HAEIRBISEXVER > AR AR HECBEAR
BENRERERE T -

8. BHBAEAMHRCERERAL LK -

Q. IBMUTAMRBALEZRME - BIEZHF R
BIRBISXVE » WA SEEREBEALEA

BIRR SRS ©

PR ESOREEIN KRB _=F+-HA=+—
B #EAL (Bt EXX TEERITHARE
RN REBRMNER KRR —BNER
BIESRIN) RERBRMBEBRD R ES
RIREE 75 M ARG 1R BI55 336 R AsC Bk 3L

NN
KA o

FURE 2y R A I
REAQTFTESNARER > URRESA
A RARE B AADDBTRAEET
B 25%EARALRA o
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
fransactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1)

(2)

Embry Holdings Limited Z#]75

Purchase of furniture and decoration services

A services agreement was entered into between the Company,
certain subsidiaries of the Group and the related companies in
relation to the purchase of fumiture and services of decoration
for counters and shops as well as different types of moulds (the
14 December 2020 (the “2020 Agreement”).
Under the 2020 Agreement, the Group agreed to purchase
the Services from the related companies for a period of three
years commenced on 1 January 2021. The related companies
are controlled by an executive director of the Company and
his close family members. Further details were disclosed in the

Company's announcements dated 14 December 2020 and
29 December 2020.

“Services”) on

The 2020 Agreement expired on 31 December 2023. The
Company and certain subsidiaries of the Group therefore
enfered info a new services agreement (the “New Agreement”)
with the related companies during the year. Under the New
Agreement, the Group agreed to purchase the Services from
the related companies for a period of three years starting from
1 January 2024. Further details were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 19 December 2023.

The continuing connected fransactions contemplated under the
above services agreements would only be subject to the
reporfing, annual review and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the listing Rules.

Lease of warehouse

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse
in Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company. The
continuing connected fransaction under the tenancy agreement
consfitutes a de minimis transaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

(3)  Consultancy fee

A substantial shareholder who is the spouse of an executive
director of the Company has been re-engaged as a consultant
of the Company for a term of one year with effect from 1
February 2023 on the expiry of the first term. The confinuing
connected transaction under the consultancy agreement also
constitutes a de minimis fransaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected fransactions of the Group
are set out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected
fransactions disclosed in (1) above and confirmed that the continuing
connected fransactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

lij  on normal commercial terms or better; and

i) according to the agreement governing them on ferms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not
exceeded the annual cap for the fransactions.

In respect of the contfinuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

The Company has also received a lefter from Ernst & Young, the
Company’s auditor, to report on the Group's continuing connected
fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditor’s letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unmodified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above in accordance with Rule T4A.56 of the
Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come fo their attention that
causes them to believe the continuing connected fransactions:

() have not been approved by the Company's board of directors;

(i)  were not entered info, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the fransactions; and

i)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December

2020.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 is provided in the secfions “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” sef out on
page 3, pages 8 to 11, and pages 13 to 25 respectively of this
Annual Report. For environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and a description
of relationships with key stakeholders, please refer to the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” which will be
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited together with this Annual Report.

Auditor

Ernst & Young refire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed af the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Ngok Ming Chu

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

M 57 A% SRl R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 82 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as af
31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statfements.

[ 8 7 5 2 IR

MREH FERRBRANELAE > DAY
ABGEMBRRNEABAEENEE - 3
BRI RMBH ERRAMERERREA
BRFETEEN, RPFEEBLERERH
EENER - R THRBEMS » RARER
AR T RERMESH PRERFENST o

a’LﬂFﬁEWEﬁTZ&%&i T2 ETFL B ARER
BHREAAENEE ) BOFTENERE > B1EA
ZEFENEE- IJH: HFIvE St 2ENIT
B, UEHRMAEREMBRREAHERR
i EERRYSTE - RPINBFETF (BEREUT
FIEMFAIERF) BER - AIFIH BB
B BREPTERNETERREHER -

How our audit addressed EFIREHN
Key audit matter the key audit matter FAREtEIE EIEMREEE
Inventory provision ﬁ":}ﬁﬁ
As at 31 December 2023, the We tested the accuracy of the A TEBEC=F£+_"F HMEAE B£E
Group had net inventories of ageing analysis of the Group's =+—H> ES£EEN FENFHERED
HK$473,964,000, representing  inventories. We recalculated the 317 E&#4473,064,000 o FfiiRiE BHE
55% and 17% of the Group's inventory provision under the Bt DREENREE BENBREHGER

current assets and total assets,
respectively. The estimation of the
inventory provision requires
significant management
judgement, which includes the
recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw
materials.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of inventory provision are

included in notes 3, @ and 20 to

the financial statements.

Embry Holdings Limited 22575

Group's policy and assessed the
assumptions being used in the
inventory provision calculation
by reviewing the basis, the
rationale and the consistency of
the inventory provision policy,
considering the historical and
current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Key audit matters (continved)
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How our audit addressed HEFIBvE N
Key audit matter the key audit matter FASREETHEIA EIEFRE s HIA
Impairment assessment of HthE E R EFE
Other Asset
As at 31 December 2023, the With regard to management's RIZEZ=F+ZF HEREEEHHM
Group had Other Assef (as defined  impairment assessment of Other =+—H> E£EN BEMNRENMH:
in note 19 fo the financial Asset, we reviewed the objectivity, HMEE(THZEWE RAESHEEE
statements) of HK$393,846,000,  independence and expertise of the  19) # 393,846,000  FrEE B IS EB (4 (&

representing 18% and 14% of the
Group's net assets and tofal
assets, respectively. Under the
annual impairment testing, the
Group conducted the impairment
assessment by comparing the net
carrying amount of Other Asset
with ifs fair value as determined
based on the valuation performed
by an external valuer and a
method of valuation which
involved cerfain assumptions,
including gross unit rafe per
square metre. The assumptions
used in the valuation have
involved significant management
judgement.

Related disclosures about the
accounting esfimation and the
details of impairment assessment of
Other Asset are included in notes 3
and 19 to the financial statements.

external valuer engaged by
management and assessed the
related data and assumptions
being adopted, including
unobservable inputs and other
estimates, by comparing key
valuation parameters including the
gross unit rate per square mefre
with market information. VWe
involved our valuation specidlists fo
assist us in reviewing the valuation
methodologies and key valuation
parameters on the fair value
estimation of Other Asset. We also
assessed the disclosures relating to
the assumptions used in determining
the fair value of Other Assef in the
consolidated financial stafements.
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Key audit matters (continved)
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How our audit addressed EFIFEHN
Key audit matter the key audit matter FREHRIA RIRRIREEE
Impairment assessment of right-of- EREEEREEEER
use assets and property, plant and {E5TE
equipment
As at 31 December 2023, the We evaluated management's RZEZ=F+"1F BRfERE &&
Group had rightof-use assets of impairment assessment and the =+—H> BE&EER NEsFHEREM

HK$147,315,000, representing
7% and 5% of the Group's non-
current assets and fotal assets,
respectively, and properly, plant
and equipment of
HK$814,841,000, representing
41% and 28% of the Group's
non-current assets and fotal assets,
respectively. Management
performed impairment assessments
on the Group's rightof-use assefs
and property, plant and equipment

where an indicator of impairment of

these assets existed. During the
year, an impairment of rightofuse
assets of HK$6,040,000 was

recognised to reduce the carrying

amounts of certain rightof-use assets

to their recoverable amounts.

identification of CGUs or
groups of CGUs based on the
Croup's accounting policies
and our understanding of the
Croup's business.

In evaluating management’s
impairment assessment, we also
assessed the valuation
methodologies adopted by
management in defermining of
the recoverable amounts of the
assets, CGUs or groups of
CGUs.

With regard to management’s
value in use calculations, we
evaluated and tested the key
assumptions used in the
calculations:

— for budgeted sales and
expenses, by comparing
the Group's budgets of the
relevant CGUs with the
historical results; and

—  for discount rate, by making
reference to market data
and comparable companies
in the indusfry.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Key audit matters (continved)

[ 9 9% it 3 0H ()

How our audit addressed EMYEHMMAE
Key audit matter the key audit matter FASREs1 I EIERARE s+ HIE
Impairment assessment of right-of- EREEEREIEEER
use assets and property, plant and Bk (&
equipment (confinued)
When performing the impairment  In relation tfo the fair value less  FETREREE > &8 RBANEENAFER

fest, management defermined the
recoverable amounts of the relevant
assets, cash-generating unifs
("CCGUs") or groups of CCGUs as af
31 December 2023 based on the
higher of value in use calculations
using the discounted cash flow
method and fair value less coss of
disposal. When using value in use
calculations, significant
management judgement and
estimates were involved in the
assessments of the recoverable
amounts of CGUs or groups of
CGUs, for example budgeted
sales, budgefed expenses and
discount rate. The outcome was
sensitive to the expected future
market conditions and the actual
performance of the CGUs or

groups of CGUs. The fair value less

costs of disposal of the relevant
assefs was defermined based on a
valuation performed by an
independent professional external
valuer, of which certain key

assumptions used, such as the gross

unit rate per square metre, involved
significant management judgement.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of impairment assessments
are included in notes 3, 9, 16 and
18 to the financial statements.

costs of disposal of the assets,
we reviewed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of
the external valuer engaged by
management and assessed the
related data and assumptions
being adopted, by comparing
key valuation parameters
including the gross unit rate per
square metre with market
information.

We involved our internal
valuation specialists fo assist us
the
appropriateness of the
methodologies and the key
assumptions used in the

in evaluating

valuations.

We also assessed the
disclosures of the impairment
assessment of right-of-use assets
included in note 18 to the
financial statements.

BREDERKARIRIR
EMEENERERE
BRNFERHE A
(URBEEAHLE) BER
—_E_=%+_"RH
—+—HEREE R
SEFBEMN(REESE
B IREELEEN
4B ARV BT U [C] £ 58 o X
BEREEER > 5F
MRS ELBMUNIRE
EABAER R BT U]
RS MEREERBH
K st 0 BlalTaER
S RAGIRE o HRIER
HIEHR MR RIRE
EfXBUNREELE
AR ERRIFES
B - EREBEENATF
BB E AT RIS
I FZEINER (L (ERMETT
ML EMmMERE » EFm
FTENEFTETERR
(BT B AKEEE)
W REANEIEE A o

G EHEEHRVRRAIR EE &
REF LR E#IN M
BWRARMEI 916
R 180

HEMZE > HfIEE
EEEFTZIEAIIMNER
(ENEEIENER
TMEREEMH 0 I
BELLRBERGES
H(BESFTHKE
BE) AmEEN
ST P ER A RYAB RAT 24
BRARR °

RPBBREEES
KBTS
BERERNTE AR
RBERZNEEN -

FPIRSHE RN B
BERMEISHNER
BEEREF G

= o

Annual Report 3R 2023 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#]75 B R AR

77



78

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Mg 7 R SR o)

Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our audifor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is o read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. VWe have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal confrol as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo
confinve as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alfernative but to do so.

The direcfors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are fo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial stafements as a whole are free from material
missfatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely fo you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. VWe do not assume responsibility
fowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial stafements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of infernal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Mg 7 R SR o)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability o continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report fo the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

M) 7 R SR A o)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
confrol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matfer should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai VWan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27 /F, One Taikoo Place
979 Kings Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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Consolidated Income Statement
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Year ended 31 December 2023 ##ZE_—_F_=F+_B=1+—HILEE
2023 2022
—T-= S =
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MfaE FET FET
REVENUE Yrzs 5 1,281,753 1,334,269
Cost of sales THE AR (325,650) (333,020)
Gross profit EF 956,103 1,001,249
Other income and gains, nef Hk A R 0 258 o) 32,544 30,104
Selling and disfribution expenses HE RDHEEY (881,430) (859,270)
Administrative expenses TGS (175,268) (176,096)
Impairment of rightof-use assets FEREESERE 18(a) (6,040) (18,7906)
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of SREERELR
financial assets, net CRE) - %8 5,492 (11,870)
Other expenses HREZ / (4,697) (4,774)
Finance costs =YW 8 (19,959) (12,175)
LOSS BEFORE TAX [&#iaiEsiE 9 (93,255) (51,628
Income tax credit PR8I % 12 21,087 389
LOSS FOR THE YEAR TATHEE ARG
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (72,168) (51,239)
LOSS PER SHARE EATER AEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SieE51E
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic [HK cents) — B GBI (17.08) (12.13)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 GBL) (17.08) (12.13)

Embry Holdings Limited Z2%(
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H#E_—_E_=&F+_A=+—HIEE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (EXPENSE)

Other comprehensive expense that may be
reclassified fo the income statement in
subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)
that will not be reclassified to the income
stafement in subsequent periods:
Revaluation surplus
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation
reserve (nofe 2.7)

Net other comprehensive income that will not
be reclassified to the income statement
in subsequent periods

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR

THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
—E-= BT F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
FEEE (72,168) (51,239)
Hhz2mB A~ (Fx)
RHEEIAB A EER D EEER
MNEMEmEAS :
TEIRINESEmMELE Y
PERZ=%8 (49,416) (196,397)
RHEHBHES A EHDEE
BREMEA S BEXL) :
BERER 9,628 3,652
REESHHEETRZ
IRIERRIE (M5 27) (2,407) (@13)
RHEEB A ZENEEER
HWEMEmUAFEE
7,221 2,739
FEHMZEMAS »
NpsiRIA (42,195) (193,658
TATHEE ABEEE
PERAZHE

(114,363) (244,897)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

&5 o IR Dl 3=

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2023 2022
—E-= T F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MizE FET FAET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE ~ R KRB 16 814,841 895,058
Investment properties KREYE 17 530,947 500,924
Rightof-use assets FEREEE 18(a) 147,315 145,181
Other asset HithEE 19 393,846 402,697
Deferred tax assets IREMIEE E 27 98,499 74,542
Deposits and other receivables e KR EHAEKERIE 22 17,512 11,672
Total non-current assets JERENEEEE 2,002,960 2,030,074

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories =z5 20 473,964 458,256
Trade receivables FEUR B 5 BR=R 21 45,204 47,443
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FTBFRIE - & R EMBEWEIE 22 56,546 57,034
Tax recoverable EllqEE s 183 3,820
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIES%EY) 23 283,610 380,178
Total current assets MENE EAAE 859,507 946,731
CURRENT LIABILITIES B I=RE

Trade and bills payable (T B SR T R i% 24 69,124 39,028
Inferestbearing bank borrowings st ER{TER 25 93,556 38,877
Lease liabilities HEas 18(b) 32,627 33,751
Other payables and accruals H A& (S TRIE & FE 5t 708 26 163,703 153,483
Total current liabilities mEaEEE 359,010 265,139
NET CURRENT ASSETS REHEEFE 500,497 681,592
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4835 25 7 Eh & (& 2,503,457 2,711,666

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENAR
Inferestbearing bank borrowings sHREIRITER 25 194,756 288,595
Lease liabilities HEaE 18(b) 21,394 22,826
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIBE(E 27 126,671 124,831
Other payables H A& RIR 26 2,254 3,082
Total non-current liabilities EREaEEE 345,075 439,334
Net assets BEFE 2,158,382 2,272,332
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ= S
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
b3 F#ET FET
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners of TAEBEE AFE(G S
the Company
Share capifal Bg 7 28 4,224 4,224
Reserves ] 29 2,154,158 2,268,108
Total equity 4ERE T 2,158,382 2,272,332

Ngok Ming Chu
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE -2 _=F+_H=1+—HIEE
Attributable to owners of the Company
FRRERAESE
Reserves
ikt
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset stafutory Share  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation  reserve opfion fluctuation ~ Goodwill Retained Total Total
copifll ~ account  surplus reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  reserves equity
fefr BEER CRYER ER§EH
s EER BEREG i EEREE BREGE fE HEHE ROEN 0 SRR AR
Notes  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
lif3 Fér FEn  FEr  TEr  TEn  FEr  TEn  FEr  TEn  FEn  TEn
[note 29) [note 29) [note 29)
(Hiz£29) (Hiz£29) (Hiz£29)
A1 January 2023 RZEZ=£—-A-H 4224 386512 122610 35593 192,154 3055 (83,073  (3,168) 1,614,425 2,268,108 2,272,332
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (72,168)  (72,68) (72,168
Revaluation surplus BfRE 16 - - - 9,628 - - - - - 9,628 9,628
Deferred fax debited fo asset REEBHEEIRY

revaluation reserve EIERE 27 - - - (2,407) - - - - - (2,407) (2,407)
Exchange diferences relaled o~ HEIEINEERTES 2

foreign operations ERER - - - - - - (49416 - - (49416)  (49.416)
Total comprehensive income,/ FRZERA/ ()

[expense] for the year o) - - - 7,221 - - (49416 - (72,168 (114,363 (114,363
Share options lapsed BRI - - - - - (75) - - 75 - -
Equityseffled share opfion REEERERER

arangements 30 = = = = = 413 = = = 413 413
At 31 December 2023 RIBZ=

+-A=+-H 4224 386512 122610 42814 192,154 3393 (132489) (3,768 1,542,332 2,154,158 2,158,382
Al January 2022 RZZ-Z&-A-H 4224 386512 122610 32854 192,242 2136 113324 (3,168 1665539 2512049 2,516,273
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - - - 51,239 (51.239) (51,239
Revaluation surplus BfRE 16 - - - 3,652 - - - - - 3,652 3,652
Deferred fax debited fo asset REEBREEIRY

revaluation reserve EERIE 2 - - - (913) - - - = = (913) [913)
Exchange diferences relaled o HEIEINEERTESE Z

foreign operations ERER = = = = = - (196,397) - - (196,397)  (196,397)
Total comprehensive income,/ FRZERA/ ()

[expense] for the year k] - - - 2739 - - (196,397) - (51,239 (244,897) (244,897)
Share options lapsed BRI - - - - - 137) - - 37 - -
Equityseffled share opfion REEERERER

arangements 30 = = = = = 956 = = = 956 956
Transfer fo refained profis BARDER - - - - 88) - - - 88 - -
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZ

+ZA=1+-A 4224 386,512 122,610 35593 192,154 3,055 (83,073) (3,168 1,614,425 2,268,108 2,272,332

Embry Holdings Limited Z2%(
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H#E_—_E_=&F+_A=+—HIEE

2023 2022
2= —ETTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HzE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEEFEZIRETE
Loss before tax PRI I ESIR (93,255) (51,628)
Adjustments for: S
Finance costs =YD N 8 19,959 12,175
Bank interest income SRITH EWA 6 (4,844) (5,367)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables 3EEUEHHJ3§L|&%’KIEE’\J%UE¢DD 6 - (1,498)
Covid-19-related rent concessions T HFE AR HE Covid-1
from lessors BIEEENEEE §'B Q (273) (2,239)
Equity-sefiled share option expense IRt BRI 413 956
Depreciation of property, plant BEBEZITE
and equipment Q 61,062 69,729
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs FREESEZITE Q 27,631 34,880
Gain on termination of leases KIEFEE 2 W Q (46) (388)
Loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE EETE s RER
property, plant and equipment, nef BEEEZ R 3 9 197 184
Wirite-back/write-off of provision for GREE1Z & B #E o]
obsolete inventories, net WisE - 7288 Q (20,234) (43,174)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEU & 7 ARFURE,
trade receivables, net CRUEE#S) > 578 Q (5,492) 4,116
Impairment of other receivables HAFEWGRIBRE ? - 7./54
Impairment of rightofuse assets FREEERE Q 6,040 18,796
Changes in fair value of investment properties & &2/ T E & 6 (889) (535)
(9,731) 43,761
Decrease in inventories =5/ 4,526 111,276
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BR =R 7,731 384
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FENRUE ~ e R EMEU
deposits and other receivables AIERL, (B 0) (5,524) 22,258
Increase in trade and bills payables FEAT B 5 AR R FE S 4RI 30,096 5,052
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HME A RIE R ESTRIE
and accruals a0 Gl b) 9,392 (45,103)
Cash generated from operations REmSRE 36,490 137,628
Overseas taxes refunded R[EIESIMAIE 1,462 6,893
Net cash flows from operating activities REEB IR RAPER 37,952 144,521
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2023 H#E_—_E_=&F+_A=+—HIEE

2023 2022
—F-= —ECCF
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
KtsE F#ET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZEZ2IREHE
Inferest received [=vellst 4,844 5,367
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - BRERXREER
plant and equipment 16 (27,660 (20,934
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BEMKREER
property, plant and equipment ZFR1STRIA 22 -
Increase in rightofuse assets EREEEEM (484) (237)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged REARRIEAZN
time deposits with original maturity period :1@@ Z IR ER
over three months FRURL (KB 0) 6,282 (6,282)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KRERH ISR FEE (16,996) (22,086)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiE;EHZIRERE
New bank borrowings FTIEIRITIER 41,758 -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEM (80,918) (19,010)
Principal portion of lease payments HENHZzEAE (42,344) (55,494
Inferest paid ENME (19,959) (12,175
Net cash flows used in financing activities B ES RS R R (101,463) (86,679)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERRELEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS g, Grid) 88 (80,507) 35,756
Cash and cash equivalents at FY2RERIREEEY
beginning of year 373,896 378,636
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net EREEH T 8 P (9,779) (40,49¢)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRERREEEY
AT END OF YEAR 283,610 373,896
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRELEBYERZAN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B4 RIB1T4EER 23 100,895 154,261
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FAEEARFREIHEE A5
of less than three months when acquired =@ B z #EIiL 8 E HAE =R 23 182,715 219,635
Non-pledged time deposit with original maturity  FAEEARFREIHEE A2
period over three months when acquired =@ Z EIKIHFERRER 23 - 6,282
Cash and cash equivalents as stated irEMBIRRTZ
in the consolidated statement of RERREEZEY
financial position 283,610 380,178
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity AR EIZEH A Z 5
period over three months when acquired =ER Z WITMERER 23 - (6,282)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated mERTRBRMIY
in the consolidated statement of cash flows B RIESZEY) 283,610 373,896
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Notes to Financial Statements

4 5 it % B ik

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

1. Corporate Information

1. 27 &EH

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin
Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interprefations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand [HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

KRABNRZEERFNB N HREFH
EHEF2ERTE(—NAN—FEH
= RIS REE]) RHEESEEEMMKIL
AERRBRAE o KRB WEMIFEE
Hhtk % Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the
Cayman Islands » TIAR BB E B S ==
AAB BN AL RAKEHE 20058 EmF
D_HR/ 18 -

FRBNEBXEBRAREER - BRINE
AEMEBXEHHFBHN M BRI
37 c FRAEENTEEBMETEEKX

28 o

& 51 BUR

21 EHE#E
ZEMBRRBESESHAASY
(TEBEHMAS ) EHENSBM
FEIMEER (T BHBRSER))
(BIEFA S EMHRELER 55
iR ((EBEER) R2E)
REBADVEORBERE - ZZ5H
BMRIBIBEL A EHE > I8
EYERANTEHE - BBEIS
RSN » BB RLUB T2
FIEEESEEEREAT T (T8

7T) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %% e 7% Pt BE (@)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

21

Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entfity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those retumns through its power over the investee
[i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(o)  the confractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contfractual arrangements;

and

[c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and fo the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Embry Holdings Limited #1755 ARAE / Annual Report ¥R 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Kt %% e 2% Pt BE (@)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. ®WEFBUR #)

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2.1  Basis of Preparation (continued) 21 E2INEE @)
Basis of consolidation (continued) RaR%E (B)
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an 38 8 KB R BR Lt = TR 4% ) #E
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are REHEA-—EHLEAE  BIAE
changes to one or more of the three elements of control EeEdESNHAEFREHR -
described above. A change in the ownership interest of A B R MRV ES) (L EK
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for EPEHIRE) > IRABRBSYIERERAZ S ©
as an equity fransaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it fisl A B B 2R 5 Y /BB 2 B B9 42 6l 4 -
derecognises the related assefs (including goodwill, ERERERERAERZDNE QS
liabilities, any non-confrolling inferest and the exchange WAERREE - 818« EAIFERE
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any mRE KRB EE ; WHESERR
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in BRENATEBEREMHILESE
the consolidated income statement. The Group's share of NEEREEE - AEBE R AN HAih
components previously recognised in other REWARENEGEMNERTIE
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated o REAEEERELERBAEE
income statement or refained profits, as appropriate, on HEEMEXRNEREEEHSE
the same basis as would be required if the Group had EiraWmRIREBEH o
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 EBEREHRINE

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

FEEEMEFENMBRERER
PR LU T s RISES]I B BB

) o

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BBV TEREZER RREA

£17%

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting EHRGHERB IRk BIHHEZH
and HKFRS Practice Policies EEMBREENEYE Z
Statement 2 WSS 25RERT

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BAGER B51E5T 2 E

Estimates 2 8RAEET &

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to ERg L HE—X 5 E

Assets and liabilities 2 1257091ERT $ZEBER
arising from a Single EEHHZ
Transaction A
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform ERg | BRI EN &
— Pillar Two Model 5 1258M1EET -7
Rules EREIR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Bt %% e 7% Pt BE (@)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below:

(al

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 1 require enfifies fo disclose
their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included
in an entity's financial statements, it can reasonably
be expected fo influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in nofe 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monefary amounts in
financial statements that are subject fo measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement fechniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's
approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Embry Holdings Limited #1755 ARAE / Annual Report ¥R 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised
HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are described
below: (continued)

()

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related fo
Assets and Lliabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no
longer applies fo fransactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from these
fransactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences
arising from rightofuse assets and lease liabilities
separately. They did not have any material impact
on the overall deferred tax balances presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
the related deferred tax balances qualified for

offsetting under HKAS 12.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred tax arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements
better understand the entities’” exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes, including the disclosure of
current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes
separately in the periods when Pillar Two
legislation is effective and the disclosure of known
or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure fo Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the legislation is enacted or substantively
enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments refrospectively. Since the
Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar
Two model rules, the amendments did not have
any impact to the Group.

2. ®WEFBUR #)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (confinved) 2. ®WEFBUR #)

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting 23
Standards
The Group has not applied the following revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group infends to apply
these revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
leaseback!

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)!:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)!: 4

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements!
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interprefation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of
a Term loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these revised HKFRSs upon initial
application, but is not yef in a position fo sfate whether
these revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact
on its results of operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity inferests issued by the Group in exchange for
confrol of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assefs. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-elated costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
confribute to the ability fo create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
confractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
a liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent sefflement is accounted for
within equity.

2. ®WEFBUR #)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

7% e 2 W 5 ()

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration fransferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assefs
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment festing, goodwill acquired in @
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
defermining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit refained.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
fransaction fo sell the asset or fransfer the liability takes
place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a
liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes
infto account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in ifs highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in ifs highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inpufs.

2. ®WEFBUR #)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant fo the
fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 — based on quoted prices {unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant fo the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)
(if)
(ifi)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
condifions applies:

(i)

i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associafe or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one enfity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entfity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related fo the Group;

the entity is confrolled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment festing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the assef’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an
individual assef, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the assef belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis or, otherwise, fo the smallest group
of cash-generating unifs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rafe that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specitic to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
assefs.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the esfimates used fo defermine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been defermined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation] had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated af cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the assef revaluation
reserve. If the fotal of this reserve is insufficient fo cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the
deficit is charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited fo the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred fo retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rafes used for this purpose are
as follows:

2% 10 3.3%

4.5% to 20%
10% to 20%
10% to 20%

Buildings

leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment

20% to 25%

Motor vehicles
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriafe, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income stafement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
reclassified to the appropriafe category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognifion, investment properties are stated af fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the reftirement or disposal.

Embry Holdings Limited #1755 ARAE / Annual Report ¥R 2023

2. ®WEFBUR #)

24

EXREFTHEE &

ME - BERREURINE (B)
HEIBYE ~ BEM&REHERE D
ZEREREBTR > BB ZRAE
DREEBEEFELOZEETD
fo > MEADRIR B EITE - FEF
BE  ERFRAFTESEZEDERN
BUBEEFRETHRN KA (U
#BA) °

MTHEDBZWE - BERREEREB
BREMNEEB SN EERITAH
B & & X 55 A3 3 H & T A5 2R AS
Mz FHE IEFESR - TE(F LSRR
BEZR—FERBRmREDZH
ENREZEMNEE > »BEREE
HEMSMIEFHEBHKRABELE
EE

R TR A ERE MR ERE
Fitk > BRFINE - ERIEN T
RRBARBRERDESETHEE
BIZ¥D2E ~ RS Reg s ©

REMFE

REMED I MKREFT 2 o 15
BREMERHHIES WA T, 5K
BRIEE - REYFEE RIZ A5
B> ETEEXRZME c RERE
R REWMEDNRRMRBEHR
ISR AFEETER

HEEIN EEFE T AWGR ©

BWEAHEREYEZEMEMN L
BEENKREIHEZFEE @R



2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Other asset

Other asset is the right to receive the new properties
under a relocation arrangement, further details of which
are given in nofe
asset, being the consideration to be received upon
disposal of the original properties under the relocation
arrangement, is initially recognised at its fair value.
Subsequent to the initial recognition, other asset is stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

19 to the financial statements. Such

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assefs at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group inifially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the pracfical expedient are measured at the fransaction
price deftermined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured af amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
imespective of the business model.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Embry Holdings Limited 22575

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assefs in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
defermines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assetfs in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured af fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commifs to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective inferest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

* the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred ifs rights fo receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b] the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered info a passthrough
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
refained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither fransferred nor refained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group confinues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the assef and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required fo repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECls are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective inferest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral fo the confractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For
those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. VWWhen making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as af the reporting dafe
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forwardocking information. The Group considers that there
has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial assef in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset fo be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely o receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking info account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Hr 75 e 2 W 5 o)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2. ®WEFBUR #)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets af amortised cost is subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs
except for frade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as defailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month EClLs

Stage 1 —

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not creditimpaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal fo lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 —

Financial assefs that are creditimpaired at
the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated creditimpaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured af
an amount equal fo lifefime ECLs

Stage 3 —

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not confain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significonf finoncing component, the Group 0pp|ies the
simplified approach in calculating ECls. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECls at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For frade receivables that confain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Embry Holdings Limited 22575

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabiliies are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabiliies at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly aftributable fransaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other

payables, borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective inferest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at ifs fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent o initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee confracts af the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as
set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and {ii] the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is freafed as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounfs is recognised in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an infention to
setile on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seftle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value after making due allowances for
obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is defermined on the
weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Nef realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
confrol the use of an identified asset for a period of fime
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for shortterm leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and rightofuse assets
representing the right fo use the underlying assets.

(a)  Rightofuse assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement dafe of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Rightof-
use assefs are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Rightof-use assets
are depreciated on a sfraightline basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

leasehold land 45 to 50 years

Buildings 210 11 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Croup by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

lease liabilities

lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement dafe of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
ferm. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rafe, and amounfs
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
cerfain fo be exercised by the Group and payments
of pendlties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses ifs incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased fo reflect the accretion of
inferest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

[c]  Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition
exemption fo ifs shortterm leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
ferm of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capifalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

lease payments on shortterm leases and leases of
low-value assefs are recognised as an expense on
a straightline basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acfs as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception [or when there is a lease modification) each of
its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a
contract confains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the confract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straightline basis
over the lease terms and is included in other income in
the income stafement due fo its operafing nature. Inifial
direct cosfs incurred in negofiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as other income in the period in which they
are eamed.

leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
shortferm cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and shorterm deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily fake a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capifalisation of
such borrowing cosfs ceases when the assefs are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costfs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive] has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to seffle the obligation, provided that a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected fo be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on fax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or subsfantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give
rise fo equal faxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assefs are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating fo the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assefs
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax
rates that are expected to apply fo the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
it and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
fo income tfaxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and seftle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assefs are expected fo be seffled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company's
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland is subject to a
withholding tax under the prevailing tax rules and
regulations of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC").

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with cusfomers is recognised
when control of goods or services is fransferred to the
cusfomers af an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entifled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimafed af coniract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer
for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rafe that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the confract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the inferest expense accrefed on the contract liability
under the effective inferest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised af the point in
fime when control of the asset is fransferred fo the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rafe are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Inferest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the nef carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Confract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract [i.e.,
transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Research and development cosis
All research costs are charged to the income statement
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
complefing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale, ifs intention to complete and its ability to
use or sell the assef, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably
the expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the
expenditure incurred in the construction cost of
infrastructure projects, are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
ifem, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is infended to
compensafe, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying
amount of the assef and released fo the income statement
by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-hased payments

The Company operates a share option scheme.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“Equity-seffled Transactions”). The cost
of Equity-seftled Transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value af the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 30 fo the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for Equity-
seffled Transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the exfent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit o the income statement for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as af the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
faken info account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered fo be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead fo an
immediafe expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

24

Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service condifions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
fransactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-seftled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the ferms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-setiled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediafely.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of these
employees’ basic salaries and are charged fo the
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assefs
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a
cenfral pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to confribute
cerfain percenfages of their payroll costs fo the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of fermination
benefits.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)
2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group defermines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
fransactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetfary items that are measured in ferms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rafes at the dates of the inifial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on franslafion of a non-monefary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item [i.e.,
franslation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
the income statement is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income statement,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating o an advance consideration, the date of
initial fransaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetfary asset or non-monetfary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of the advance consideration.
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2. Accounting Policies (continved)

2. ®WEFBUR #)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are franslated info
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in
the reserve relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are franslated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of confingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered info commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to
substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that
it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased
out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portfion that is held fo earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
fo determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continved)

Judgements (continued)

Income tax (continued)

As explained in note 27 to the financial statements,
withholding tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is provided, at
the applicable withholding tax rate, on the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that would be
distributed to their respective holding companies outside
Chinese Mainland in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Chinese
Mainland are all held to eam rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over fime, rather than through sale. Accordingly, deferred tax
on the Group's investment properties at fair value is measured
fo reflect the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amounts of the investment properties through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(o)  independent valuations;

(b)  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value estimation of investment properties (continued)

(c)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments fo reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred af those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the ferms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
markef assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in notfe
17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix fo calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rafes are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer type).
The provision matrix is inifially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forwardHooking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forwardHooking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive fo changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's frade receivables is disclosed in nofe
21 to the financial stafements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, it
is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of
inventories and the associated provision required. When
calculating the invenfory provision, management considers the
nature and condition of inventories, as well as applying
assumptions around anticipated marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay fo borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value fo the rightofuse asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter info financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates] when available and is required
tfo make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assefs (other than Other Asset)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all nonfinancial assets (including the rightof-use
assefs) at the end of each reporting period. Non-inancial
assets are fested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of ifs
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
esfimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rafe in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.

R & ut B &A S

hst 2 RBARREI R (&

FEERE

FEBNEREESM > UREHEBESR
KRB R BB ENTE - AL > B
FEZRFERAAREIMELURPIERY
HEERE - Bt EFERER > EEES
EREFENMEE R WA KA
migsTEHEE R B R EM R AENRER -

HE — MFEEERFIE
rEEEIKEZEEHEARNFRREIHF
Ko AL > EREEEMAER (TTEEER
MR SHEEEERE  BEBERNXSE
ERPRLIEEREDTSINSRERRESR
EBERIZEE  MUUBRLIRIR RS
LHABEAMRESEI A 2K
It > IBEERRF R RIR T AR THESZ (Y
BYFI= > B i A] 8 Z2 A0 A R EF (W pL ik =
SIMRMERZZMBATMES) NEAY
FREITRE R BRTEE Z R AR B
(NERELIFUMB AR 2 HEE KT
B o BIZAEHARMGE - BERTRRE
ABIRR AR > AEBERTIHRBAH
B (I HSAR) LB IE S ERF R A
BEFERRENGS WNEBASNE
IEEFHR) ©

FEERMEE (HMEERIN) BRIE

AEERSREPRMIBEIFFTHMEE (B
BEREEE) TEESFEEMARED
R o JFERBENB PRI A SEEEI
ERREERETREND - WEENRE
ELEBANRE(EBBE O] EE (B
HAFEREERFEEFEREENRS
Z) AFEERE - EstEERERERR
EEEY ARG REEEIIREEEEN
NIEHARRIENE > WEESBEARRE
DEtEZERERENRE - EREEE
RERE—D BB B ARMEE 18 o
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment assessment of Other Asset (as defined in note 19)

As disclosed in note 19, Other Asset is the right fo receive the
new properties and is stated af cost less any impairment
losses. Under the annual impairment testing, an impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of ifs
fair value less costs of disposal and ifs value in use. The Group
conducted the impairment assessment by comparing the nef
carrying amount of Other Asset with its fair value as
determined based on the valuation performed by an
independent professionally qualified valuer and a method of
valuation which involved certain assumptions, including the
gross unif rate per square metre. The assumptions used in the
valuation have involved significant management judgement.

Segment Information

The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear, sleepwear
and others. Since this is the only operating segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In defermining
the Group's geographical information, the revenue information
is based on the locations of the customers, and the total non-
current asset information, other than deferred tax assets, is
based on the locations of the assets.

3.

R & ut B &A S

hEt 2 RBARREI R (&

Hth&E ERREE (ERRMIEE9)

W EE 198 58 » HthE ERRUFTY=
BYRER - MR A ASRUERRME R SR o
EETEERENSR  BEENREEE
BUpREEBBHEIWKEEE (BMER
FEAHENEREREBEMNETHNRS
)R AEFEERE ~ERRBLLRH
thEEMNREFEERBBIEEXSER
HEMETNEEEEN R TEURS R
ETRR (BRES T RNREME) B9l
B AETRE G » MEPMBRKRY KR
EXEEEHE -

Zg gl
FEEZTELENHBELTHE R
8~ AR, BEREMZ RIERIFE o B
RIEREEEZ MHE—EENE > WIES
E—H 2D o REXREEZEE K
o W B LR PR A B - 48
IERBEE (EENBEEERIN) ERIZE
EEFRTEM B EHRE o

Chinese Mainland Hong Kong Others Total
HEARE &# Hith st
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEI=§E Z-"f ZB-=§ “T-"f ZEBI=F "T-"F ZBCEE TTC
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT F#m FET FET FE7T FHT FET FET
Revenue from external SRER ZWE
customers 1,239,028 1,287,846 39,682 38,790 3,043 7,633 1,281,753 1,334,269
Non-current assefs FERBEE 1,795,969 1,847,211 108,492 108,321 - - 1,904,461 1955532
Capital expenditure incurred FRNERHZ
during the year 26,402 20,631 1,258 303 - - 27,660 20,934

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, as no

revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers is presented

under HKFRS 8.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. Revenue 5. Wi
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
2023 2022
== B HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers HKEEF SIS
Sale of goods HESR 1,281,753 1,334,269
Revenue from contracts with customers KEER SN
(i) Disaggregated revenue information SHEKEER
2023 2022
—B_= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Business activities 5558
Concessionary counters THEHE 759,670 757,182
Retail stores TE B 115,838 119,973
Internet and wholesale 8 _ETHE Rt 2% 403,202 449 481
Original design manufacturer ("ODM”) R EtEEm 3,043 7,633
1,281,753 1,334,269
Brands an %
Embry Form ZFHTS 709,065 697,133
Fandecie HINEE 204,761 254,143
Others Eih 364,884 375,360
ODM products ODME & 3,043 7,633
1,281,753 1,334,269
Products Em
lingerie R 1,095,290 1,134,280
Sleepwear BT 136,704 139,551
Swimwear KK 31,592 41,767
ODM products ODME & 3,043 7,633
Other products HithE R 15,124 11,038
1,281,753 1,334,269
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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5. Revenue (confinved)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i)
The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

5. Wt #)
RAEF ALK ()

DEWEER (&)
TRETARSHNREBIBAE
3 AEERSHVNENERT !

2023 2022
—E= S
HKS’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue recognised that was included in FHYEaOsEaNaET
confract liabilities af the beginning of FriesB A
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEE M 12,201 14,642
(i) Performance obligations (i) EBHEE

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers via
refail stores, concessionary counters and internet. The
performance obligation is satisfied when the product is
transferred to the customers upon delivery of goods.
Payment of the fransaction price is due immediately
when the customers purchase the goods. The payment is
usually sefled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sells goods to wholesalers. The
performance obligation is satisfied when control of the
products has been fransferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler's acceptance
of the products. The payment is generally due within one
month, extending up to three months for major cusfomers,
from delivery, except for certain wholesalers, where
payment in advance is normally required.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

Revenue (continved) 5. W)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) KEERESHNKE (@)
(i) Performance obligations (continued) li) RBHEEE

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated
fo the remaining performance obligations (unsafisfied or
partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements because all the remaining
performance obligations in relation fo the sale of goods
are a part of confracts that have an original expected
duration of one year or less.

ERPTHNEEZS > DEEFEHRT
)EZ’JEE(EEE??Y*B DARBIT) B
R 5 BRI KT R F R R M PR
B hHRESMIBEARIAA
FTITEROSERRIGTRAMES—
FHATHEN—EED °

Other Income and Gains, Net 6. JoAug A KWt o WA
2023 2022
—F-= T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Other income Htg A
Subsidy income* AL A * 11,052 20,075
Gross rental income from investment KEYEKSTHEN
property operating leases: HHE U AAREE :
Other lease payments, including HBEERIE » GEEE
fixed payments RIE 16,951 20,703
Variable lease payments that do not FECRR e8I =8
depend on an index or a rate DR E=HIE 708 548
Bank interest income RITH B U 4,844 5,367
Interest accretion on non-current receivables  JEBNEAFE W =R IBRYF B 18 70 - 1,498
Gain on termination of leases KIEFRE 2 W 46 388
Others Hih 5,646 2,218
Total other income FER=E TGN 39,247 50,797
Gains/(losses), net sk (385%K) » B8
Foreign exchange differences, nef ERESE  FRA (7,592) (21,228)
Changes in fair value of investment BEYE LT EEE (1)
properties (nofe 1/ 889 535
Total gains/(losses) “s s (F85R) (6,703) (20,693
Total other income and gains, net AREAMUT A R Wi » 3R 32,544 30,104

*

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating o this income. &
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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7. Other Expenses

7. H At

2023 2022
—EZ= B F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Charitable donation BEBT - 2,558
Loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE ST N RE R R E
property, plant and equipment, net BEZEE 35 197 184
Employee fermination benefits BT EERES 4,500 2,032
Total other expenses MRHE 4,697 4,774
8. Finance Costs 8. Rh¥ RLA

2023 2022

—E-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Interest on bank loans IRITETFE 17,481 9,147
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 2,478 3,028
Total HCES¢ 19,959 12,175
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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9. Loss Before Tax

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

9. BBl i s 18

AEBZBFRAIBEENG GtA) :

(credifing):
2023 2022
—E-= B4
HKS’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold* EEFEMAE 325,650 333,020
Depreciation of property, plant and EEBEZITE
equipment 61,062 69,729
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs FREBSEZITE 27,631 34,880
Gain on termination of leases KRIFRE 2 W (46) (388)
lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBENEENE
measurement of lease liabilities (note 18(c))  (KtaE 18(c)) 245,787 239,290
Covid-19-related rent concessions from EEENRHE Covid- 19% 18
lessors MEENEEER (273) (2,239)
Employee benefit expenses (excluding BEBHNHEY FEEES
directors’ and chief executive's BATEAEHF BN — AEE 10) ©
remuneration — nofe 10):
Wages and salaries ITEKFE 402,545 408,987
Retirement benefit scheme contributions* * * BRG] 53 e > > * 48,145 52,979
Employee termination benefits ETHBRES 4,500 2,032
Equity-sefiled share option expense A ERERERS 413 671
Total 4E By 455,603 464,669
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z BB = 2,668 2,668
Advertising and counter decoration expenses B2 BB EE AR 124,529 68,135
Wirite-back/write-off of provision for PREEIF S B AR 1S E] N -
obsolete inventories, net JRER (20,234) (43,174)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of FEWR BB S RREURIE GRIERI£Y) >
trade receivables, net* * VPRE** (5,492) 4,116
Impairment of other receivables* * H A FESGRIRRE * * - 7,754
Impairment of rightofuse assets FERESERE 6,040 18,796
Research and development expenditure S b 2,629 1,187
loss on disposal /write-off of items of HE WIHYE - BREKREE
property, plant and equipment, net THEZE1E 5 P8 197 184
Foreign exchange differences, net FERER > JBEE 7,592 21,228
Gross and net rental income B A LBRES T 5 (17,659) (21,251)
Changes in fair value of investment properties & &4 /A B B4 Ef) (889) (535)
Bank interest income RITH WA (4,844) (5,367)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables  IERENFEWRIBRF B = (1,498
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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9. Loss Before Tax (confinved)

*

* *

* ok *

The cost of inventories sold for the year included
HK$95,092,000 (2022: HK$66,788,000) relating fo staff
costs, depreciation of manufacturing faciliies and write-back/
write-off of provision for obsolefe inventories, net, which is also
included in the respective fotal amounts disclosed above for
each fype of expenses.

Impairment/(reversal of impairment] of frade receivables, net,
and impairment of other receivables are included in “Reversal
of impairment/(impairment] of financial assets, net” on the face
of the consolidated income statement.

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the

B

*

* Kk Kk

B 48 ()
CECERAOEETME WERE
HE R A D] WA o B
A95092000& (= & — — #&F:
66,788,000 7T) o A RI#EZEIN B CA
W8> SRR o

FEWR B ZART AE,~ (BifE[E]fE) » JFEE -
BB E W E Bt A MRS ik 2
B T B & BB O]~ (hifE) » F8R)
7 o

B [ 75 18 = AT By L R R A 1R
FRKFHIE R ©

Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Llisting of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”] (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

B R AT AR

RIBEBMERZFAARAE (THAZFT))
e LA (TEWHARR) ~ EBREF
f555383(1)(a), (b), (c)e(fiff » MR AT (1
BEFENmER) REISE 2 8HRENT ¢

2023 2022

—¥= nl- S -

HK$000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Fees wE 1,109 1,074

Other emoluments: HhE S -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e LR EYFE 8,121 8,528

Bonuses™* E4T * 228 232

Equity-setiled share option expense REEEERERS 96 207

Retfirement benefit scheme contributions BOKER 5T EHER 36 37

Total fees and other emoluments B M EMMENS 9,590 10,078
*  Executive directors of the Company are entifled to bonus X KA ITEEE RS TLAT 0 T

payments which are defermined as a percentage of net profit of
the Group on a quarterly basis.
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10. 3 F R AT BUREH W (@)

10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Remuneration (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the

Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of the share options granted in
2020, which has been recognised in the income statement
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements is

included in the above directors’ and chief executive's

remuneration disclosures.

RBE_ZE_ZF+_"_HBA=+—HI%F
B> BETEERRAERRBREMIEE
NN EBIRETEERBRE  E—P5F
IBERMERRMEI0 - R _TF
FriR B BB R EN A E (EREBEN
FNGERARR) DR HEETE - M
A BHRENEBEIEE L XMIEEN
BERITHHERFINA ©

2023 —¥Z=
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances seftled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  expenses  contributions remuneration
A
2R RigGE  BHEN
e BUNE T4 RRkERx  EIMR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FE7 FiEr Fir5 FEr FiEr
Executive directors: HITEE .
Madam Ngok Ming Chu SRS T - 3410 83 33 18 3,544
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza** BBt - 2,944 98 31 18 3,091
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen ME2EE - 683 12 7 - 702
Ms. Llu Qun BEELt - 1,084 35 16 - 1,135
Subtotal INeF = 8,121 228 87 36 8,472
Indlependlent non-execulive BUFRTEE .
direciors:
Mr. Chan Chi On##* e S 170 - - - - 170
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ARELE 313 - - 3 - 316
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung RS 313 - - 3 - 316
Prof. lee T. S. FREHR 313 - - 3 - 316
Subfofal INEF 1,109 = = 9 = 1,118
Total it 1,109 8,121 228 9% 36 9,590
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

10. 3 F R AT BUREH W (@)

2022 —EF
Salaries, Equity-  Refirement
allowances seftled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses  contiibufions  remuneration
e
R RIELES RINER
fikn ENF @ B4 HERRiERS SRR ek
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HITEE .
Mr. Cheng Man Taif MRt = 267 - - | 268
Madam NgokMing Chv ~ E88BR%+ - 37 82 71 18 3,448
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza** EE T - 2,953 100 67 18 3,138
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BE2RE - 766 12 17 = 795
Ms. Lu Qun BEEY T - 1,265 38 37 - 1,340
Subtotal INEF - 8,528 232 192 37 8,089
Indlependlent non-executive BUFHITEE
directors:
Mr. Lau Siu Ki ZBmERE 358 - - 5 - 363
Mr. Lee Kwan Hung I 358 - - 5 = 363
Prof. lee T. S. EREHE 358 - - 5 - 363
Subtotal INE 1,074 - - 15 - 1,089
Total st 1,074 8,528 232 207 37 10,078

Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 February 2022.

#  Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, a director of the Company, is also the
chief executive officer of the Company.

Mr. Chan Chi On was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 25 May 2023.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration

during the year ended 31 December 2023.

There was no remuneration paid during the year to the
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

136  Embry Holdings Limited Z#1551%A2ERAE] / Annual Report £E4R 2023

o BREER CE —F _H—HEHE
KREHITEFZH -

" AREEFBEER LI EFLAEZ
TTECABZG ©

#i AR T R —F R A+ AH
EEZEAERANTBIIFRTES °

BHE T £+ _B=+—HIEEY
BEEYITHEAR R EE RV AE
B =z 228k ©

REBNFRMERESHERFHMN
TERFBEEINA I I A 2 B RS R 52 B
NIERBEREE (CT2F 1 §) -



Kt %% e 2% Pt BE (@)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

11. Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2022: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2022: two)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

M. agEkEHANL

FNREBRBHFALOE=S8S (C2
—oE=R) HEMEBOR L
BRI 0Bt - ENEBH—E (TS
— & o) FAADEERTHER
> BEHES T FHREDT

2023 2022

—EZ= —ETTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#E FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2R EYRESE 2,187 2,272
Bonuses 1E4T 54 57
Equity-sefiled share option expense IR E B AR 22 60
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINEF R 134 129
Total 4=t 2,397 2,518

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

#ENEB I LA 4R 2 IFEE AR TR &L
e ESABNT

Number of employees

EEAE
2023 2022
—E= B4
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &7 = 1,500,000 7T 2 2
2 2

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options
were granted to non-direcfor and non-chief execufive highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosure in note
30 to the financial statements. The fair value of the share
options granted in 2020, which has been recognised in the
income statement over the vesting period, was determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

REE_E_EF+_B=+—HIF
B FEERIFTHESRREHEERERD
AEBIRBARFE MIERERE  E—D5F
IBE R MBI ZES0MIRER - R
T_ETEMRBBRENATE (EREE
BHARTEW R RIES) IR HEAEE
MARRRFAEHEEEFALMIFESTK
FTBARH RS EENIFER o
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12. Income Tax 12, 5 B
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the MR AERRERNL BRESBEL MR
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong SiEN > B R EHES BTSN EE (T
Kong during the year (2022: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable ETF I E)  c Hi RN EN 2
elsewhere have been calculated af the rafes of tax prevailing MIBERAEECEEH R BRIREK
in the regions in which the Group operates. st8 o
2023 2022
—F=-= —ECCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current — Chinese Mainland BNERRRTE — AR B A B
Overprovision in prior years B EBRER - (2,419)
Deferred (note 27) IR (FfaE27) (21,087) 2,030
Total tax credit for the year FEZHRKRIER S (21,087) (389)
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax MUARAB RE RIS M B AT HMtE
at the sfatutory rates for the regions in which the Company and EEME KRG AIGEAE 2 REMAX
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at BERABRREFE 2 RIBIRENHERN
the effective tax rafe is as follows: T
2023 2022
—F-= —ECCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
loss before tax PRI ARS8 (93,255) (51,628)
Tax at the applicable statutory rates BRACHRETE ZRIE (19,343) (10,752)
Adjustment in respect of current tax of BT HAEIRN AR B &
previous periods - (2,419)
Income not subject to tax BEER Z WA (1,658) (1,503)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGIE Y- ba 3,070 9,734
Tax losses utilised from previous periods AR BT AR R IEE 2 (2,596) =
Tax losses not recognised KSR IER 18 4,365 4,050
Others Hith (4,925) 501
Tax credit af the Group's effective rate BAEEZERREFEZ
MBS (21,087) (389)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Kt %% e 2% Pt BE (@)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

13. Related Party Transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material

13.FHENLRS

Brz S MBI H M B PP 2 3235 -
FEERERNEFMEALTETZEKR

transactions with related parties during the year: TEWF
2023 2022
—g-= T F
Nofes HK$’000 HK$'000
Mtz FE FET
Continuing transactions 1HEXS
Purchases of furniture and decoration BREATBEEUR
services for counters and shops B 2 R R BB AR TS
as well as different types of IDYSE=S =Ry =]
moulds from related companies (i) 9,843 8,087
Rental expenses for a warehouse KATESWEIREZ
charged by a direcfor of the Company  FA&RX (i) 336 336
Consultancy fee fo a substantial BAARABEERE
shareholder of the Company X fIEERIE& (iii) 1,474 1,238

Nofes:

(i) The purchases of fumiture and decoration services for (i)
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds from
LRI BRI S CRI) BREAE (Duosiwel Metal &
Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co., lid.) and E N % B4ERE
4§ T 2 B R 2 8 (Changzhou Duosiwei Fumniture
Decoration Consfruction Co., lid. ("Changzhou Duosiwei”)),
related companies controlled by Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen,
an execttive director of the Company, and #TEB4#EE % (F
JII) B BR 2 & (Xinsiwei Industry (Shenzhen| Co., ltd.), a
related company controlled by close family members of Mr.
Cheng Chuen Chuen, an executive director of the
Company, were made according fo the terms similar fo
those offered by the Group's independent suppliers. Mr.
Cheng Chuen Chuen completed the disposal of his entire
interests in Changzhou Duosiwei on 30 May 2023 and
Changzhou Duosiwei ceased fo be a related company of
the Company. The balances owed fo related companies as
at 31 December 2023 amounted to HK$3,696,000
(2022: HK$5,908,000) and were unsecured, interestfree
and repayable in accordance with normal frading ferms.
The amounts have been included in other payables and
accruals as at the end of the year.

[i)  The rental expenses were charged by Madam Ngok (i)
Ming Chu, an executive director of the Company, and
determined with reference to the then prevailing market
conditions.

[ii) ~ Mr. Cheng Man Tai, a substantial shareholder of the (iif)
Company, had been reengaged as a consuliant of the
Company for a term of one year with effect from 1
February 2023 (2022: a term of one year with effect
from 1 February 2022). The terms of consultancy fee
were based on a consultancy agreement entered info
between the Company and Mr. Cheng Man Tai.

DB ABRTESHERLE
FriEdIR B AR 2 B AR
S5 CFRIY) BIRA B K& M 2 B4
REAEHMTIEERAE (MENZR
) U A RBERITEZEERA
SRR B EEGINREA T I R4
B (FI) BRARBEEM S
2R R EIRFE U R SRR
EEm A E BB P ie it
ZIEFIEE WEELER S
T =FERB=THERHEEER
N2 BAER 2 ERE T > BN B4
TEANNTNEBEAT - R _E
_=E+_RA=+—HX{EEA
B Z 45884 3,696,000 T (ZE
— & :5,908,000%7T) Jh HEIK
G ERER—REBERE
B o ZERBEENERGEERIIE
HEMETRIB R ESTRIE ©

BEFAXEARAB N TEEEHA
B TWMASEER 2 RE
/E o

SNBEERFEHRLER _F
T CE_ R HiEEEEARNT
A —F(CEBE-_—_F: -
“_HFE"H—HiEAH—F) - &
RENER 2 IRIEAA T HEFHZR
SN REE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

13. Related Party Transactions (continved) 13.6HB#AN LR @)

(a)  (continued) () @&
The above fransactions constitute continuing connected R EHRAE4AE > U ERSF
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing BRFERERS > BRAFBER
Rules and their details are disclosed in the report of the EETHMENIEE °
directors.
The directors are of the opinion that the above EERALERFZERNEAEELE
fransactions were conducted in the ordinary course of EFBEIZRIET o

business of the Group.

(b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group () FEEFEEEASZFH
2023 2022
= == -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Shortterm employee benefits EHAEE = 12,347 12,371
Postemployment benefits BB ET 296 576
Equity-seftled share option expense RS H AR 120 254
Total compensation paid to I FEBEEAS 2B
key management personnel 12,763 13,201
Further details of directors’ and chief executive’s SR RITEAERE BBV IE =N B
remuneration are included in note 10 fo the financial FEERRMIEE 10 o
statements.
14. Dividends 14. )k B
The board of directors of the Company does not recommend AABEEE BB RERE_S_=F
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 T+TZA=T—HIFEZFRAKE °

December 2023.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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15. Loss Per Share Attributable to

Owners of the Company

(a)

(b)

Basic (o) EZ
GEAEEL IR T8 E

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

1542 vl B A N\ BEAG 55 ik i 48

Loss K548
Loss attributable to owners of the Company, FBREtESREXREEZ
used in the basic loss per share calculation AT A AFEILEE

2023 2022
—E-= B
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(72,168) (51,239

Number of shares
420k 4=
2023 2022
—E-= TR F

Shares Bz{n
Number of ordinary shares of the Company st EAA T ESREREE

in issue, used in the basic loss per share FIERAZ EREETT

calculation =iE G 422,416,638 422,416,638
Basic loss per share (HK cents) SREAREE B (17.08) (12.13)
Diluted (h) #F

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31

December 2023 and 2022 in respect of a dilution as b

BE_T__ERTF=ZF1TC
B=+t—HLEFE BREAKR#
T HIt ) AFELEREMR

the impact of the share options has antidilutive effect on VSR EREERELE -

the basic loss per share amounts presented.

Annual Report 3R 2023 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 AR A

141



142

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

16. 93 ~ W5 Rkl

Furniture,
fixtures
leosehold ~ Plontond  ond office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
il B
HEn% BER  RMAZ
¥ R Ha# i AE HEIR st
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Fi#n F&7n T#n T#n &1 Té#n Té#n
2023 ZEIzE
Cost: A
At T Jonuary 2023 RZE"=5-F-A 875418 3,690 296,642 346,865 9,663 9456 1541734
Additons e - - 1876 7476 501 17,807 27,660
Disposals/wriieoff tHE /i = - (1437) (7,030 - - (8,467)
Transfers B 2311 - 12,897 2,330 - (17,538) -
Transfer fo invesiment properfies BRERENE (o)
note o] (30,475) - - - - - (30,475)
Exchange realignment ERHE (18,801) - (6,488) (7133 (127) (212) (32,761)
At 31 December 2023 RZB-=F+-R=t-H 828,453 3,690 303,490 342,508 10,037 9513 1497691
Accumulofed depreciafion: ZithE:
At 1 January 2023 RZ%"=F-B-H 162,843 3,690 157,670 312,942 9,531 - 646,676
Provided during te yeor EpyifE 18,462 - 24,350 18,223 27 - 61,062
Disposals/wiitelf HE /i - - (1,297) (6,951) - - (8,248)
Transfer fo invesiment properfies BRERENE (o)
note o] 2,806) - - - - - 2,800)
Exchange realignment ERAR (3,692 - 3,539) (6,480) (123) - (13,834)
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+ZA=1-H 174,807 3,690 177,184 317,734 9,435 - 682,850
Nt book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2023 RZ%-=F+"FA=1+-H 653,646 - 126,306 774 602 9,513 814,841
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. %3¢ ~ B Kk fli o4
(continued)
Fumiture,
fixtures
lesehold ~ Plontond ~ and office Motor  Conshuciion
Buldings ~ impovemens  machinery  equipment vehicles — in progess Tolol
il %E

BEnE BER  RHAZE
g7 & e R AE HRIE a5t
HKE000  HKJ000  HKFO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS00  HK$000
TEn T TEn TEn T TEn 0

2022 - Sl

Cost: Ax.
At T Jonuary 2022 RZE_"£-F-H 962 298 3,690 321,567 366,760 10,160 50 1,664,525
Addiions HE - - 1,603 8,740 - 10,531 20934
Disposals/wiiteff HE /s - - (1.775) (1.427) - - (3,202)
Tronsfers et - - - 792 - (792) -
Transfer fo invesiment properties BEERENZ (W)

[nofe o] (10,631) = = = = = (10,631)
Exchange realignment B (76,249 = (24813 (28,000] (497) (333 (129,892
At 31 December 2022 Sy = | 875,418 3,690 296,642 346,865 9,663 0456 1541734

Accumulofed depreciion: ZEIE
At T Jonuary 2022 RZZ_"5-A-H 156,762 3,690 145915 313,313 9,897 = 629,577
Provided during the year EREE 19,552 - 25,223 24,842 112 - 69,729
Disposals/ writeoff HE /s = = (1,602 (1416) - - 3.018)
Transfer o invesiment properties BEERENZ (W)

[nofe af (702) = = = = = [702)
Exchange realignment B (12769 = (11.866) 23,797) (478) = (48,910]
At 31 December 2022 Sy =y | 162,843 3,690 157,670 312,942 9,531 = 646,676

Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZE+ZR=1-H 712,575 = 138,972 33923 132 9,456 895,058
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. 0% ~ BB Mkl @)

(continued)
Notes: MfaE
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group rented (a) #Z= =F+A=1+—HLFE"
out certain floors of its owner-occupied properties to an Zkﬁlﬁ?%i%:ﬁﬁ%ﬂE%;%%@
independent third party for rental income. At the date of change MWHR%H%H&]\ RERRTEEE
in use, this property became investment property. Upon the P ZEMEMBREYE - BYE
tfransfer from property, plant and equipment of ﬁ%& % 8 79 27,609,0008 T (Z &
HK$27,669,000 (2022: HK$9,929,000) and corresponding T & :19,92900087T) MBEAREE
rightof-use land of HK$1,259,000 (2022: HK$489,000 to Z2THA1,250,0008T (CE - _4F:
investment properties, this property was revalued af 489,000%7‘5) EREREYER _?:—Er
HK$38,556,000 (2022: HK$14,070,000) with a revaluation M) E 438,556,000 L (ZF
surplus of HK$9,628,000 (2022: HK$3,652,000) credited "% 114,070,000 7T) ﬁ'ﬁ%fﬁﬁb
to the asset revaluation reserve. £29,628,00048 w( = & = — :
3,652,000 #7%) 5t ABEEfh1H#E °
(b) At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's buildings with a b)) MIEBEZ=F+ZHA=+—H ' &&£H
net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,411,000 (2022: ETERBEN2411,0008T(ZE
HK$2,512,000) were pledged to secure general banking T 12,512,000 #7T) BIRIRIEAR
facilities granted to the Group [note 25). FTAREBN —RIBITRENIER (M E
25) o
17. Investment Properties 17. 8/ EW*E
2023 2022
—FZ= —E__F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 500,924 520,563
Changes in fair value (nofes 6 and 9) NEEEE (B oKk 9) 889 535
Transfer from property, plant and ERBEYE ~ BRE&REN
equipment and rightof-use land (nofe 16) R+ (FiiaE 16) 38,556 14,070
Exchange realignment PE R (9,422) (34,244)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+_A=+—BHZKHEE 530,947 500,924
The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, REBZKREYED MR EBHAZEE

Wyle

r Centre I, 200 Tai lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New

Terrifories, Hong Kong, at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu
District, Shanghai, the PRC, and certain floors of the building
located at 259 Hehaixi Road, Xinbei District, Changzhou, the
PRC, respectively, and are held under medium ferm leases.

Embry Holdings Limited 22575
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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17. Investment Properties (confinved)

17. B/ EW*E @)

At 31 December 2023, the Group's investment property
situated in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$92,000,000
(2022: HK$92,000,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 25).

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Chinese Mainland were revalued on 31 December 2023
based on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited ("CWL"), independent professionally qualified valuers.
Valuations were based on the capitalisation of net rental
income derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the properties, or
where appropriate, with reference to comparable market
fransactions and evidence and taking into consideration
adjustments that reflect differences in transaction timing,
location and fenure.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are mainfained. Management discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation fechnique used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased tfo third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 18 fo the financial statements.

R_E_=F+"FB=+—H ' x&EEA
F{E 92,000,000 BN EBNKEY
(T :92,000,000%T) B
HIEAR T AEBRN—RIBITRENIER
(Ff3zE25)

FEBZREMEDHUNREBRABEKX
ERBIEXSERMGEMTRERITA
RAE (MBER TR _=F+"A4
=+—HER - HEDHENRRARNE
EWAFEER > TEEF RMYEE
SRR ARG - 3 NE ) 2E eIy
MIER 57 RER > WEBBEURRRZ S
RrfE] ~ RL S EHARIER ©

BF  AERZEIMNSGHEMEEHEAE
B 2 YR EITHNB (L (E - SN (ERTRYER
REROEDSNH B2 - BUMRE
DR RFERRE - EEEGFNRMHR
HEEET A EREGEMAREERR
HEGRIETS® ©

FEERZEERT ZLEES - PEEHY)
EZ2NTEER  ARYEZESRERE
RESHERBR -

REMELDICERERTFE =7 > H&F1B
PN FFRMARMEE 18 -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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17. &M *¥ )
AFEEZELER

17. Investment Properties (confinved)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 were estimated by using
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements were categorised under level 3.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within

RIEZ=F+Z/B=+—HKZZE_Z
F+ZB=+—H  KEBUEKRTAER
R ASIRESI 2 REYEZ AT EBER
NEBEFEDENFZ=HIET °

RAFBESRE=BADEZATEE

level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: FFEHIR !
Hong Chinese
Kong Mainland
g REIARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 RZZ__#—HA—HBZ%KHE 91,000 429,563
Changes in fair value recognised in R RAERZ

the income statement NFEEES 1,000 (465)
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEBETHBEYE WL 16)

[note 16) - 14,070
Exchange realignment R R - (34,244)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and AR TF+ZA=+—Hk

at 1 January 2023 —E_=F—HB—HZKEME 92,000 408,924
Changes in fair value recognised in R m&RAERZ

the income stafement NEEEE - 889
Transfer from owner-occupied properties BEEETEAYE W 16)

[note 16) - 38,556
Exchange realignment FERAE - (9.422)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 RIZZ=F+"F=1+—H

ZEREE 92,000 438,947
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value TR BF—AREE Ak BB EEIRATF

measurements between level 1 and level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). H(CB-—4F . HE) o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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17. Investment Properties (confinved)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

17. B/ EW*E @)

DY BESFR &
U aREYEEEERGER EREE
WAIRZME

Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MELER fh{ES* ERFAHRRBARE FoBREARRER
2023 2022
2= =

Hong Kong Markef comparable Cross unit rafe HK$3,500 to HK$3,500 to
— Commercial properties method per square foof HK$3,600  HK$3,600
— level 3 (note i)

) MG LLEUA BTHRMEMERE  3,50087TE 3, 5008TE
— BRAYE (Btaz i) 3,600 3,000%E7T
— B=®

Chinese Mainland Income capitalisation  Capitalisation rate 2.5% to 2.5% 1o
— Commercial properties approach per annum (nofe i) 6.5% 8.25%
— level 3

R AR WAB X BEEHREER (Wati) 25% % 2.5% &
— BAYE 6.5% 8.25%
— B=H

Notes: =4

The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the higher the fair
value.

ii.  The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair
value.

18. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises and sfores used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 45 to 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
leases of office premises and stores generally have lease terms
between 1 and 7 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assefs outside the
Croup. There are several lease confracts that include extension
and ferminafion opfions and variable lease payments.

SYHRBEMEEES  ATEES -

i SEEAMEFHS > ATEBE-

18. &

FEBEAFEEA

REEGZEFTRAS B AR RS
BEIBHESGH - BRAFE —RMEAR
MmZETWEEAE LM > AR 45E 50
F o MRBEZSIHEERNERR > 1
M AE ST (TR PIRRIE © A BR P A5 B9 AR
ERBENFIE/FE-—RME > £&
BRI AAERLSONN TEERDERE
BE - RN BEERKE LUK AT
HEMMBEESH -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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18. Leases (continved)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Embry Holdings Limited Z2%(

Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets

18. & @)

KEBEARBA &

) EAEEE

rEBFRERESENREEK

and the movements during the year are as follows: ZEmT -
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
AL 1g¥ st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2022 W_E__F#—A—H 135,550 39,313 174,863
Additions hE - 45,105 45,105
Transfer to investment ERELEYE
properties (nofe 17 Wzt 17) (489) = (489)
Termination of leases KIS - (3,616) (3,616)
Depreciation charge TEER (3,779) (31,101) (34,880
Impairment charge HEER - (18,7906] (18,7906]
Exchange realignment PE 2 5E %R (9,572 (7,434) [17,006)
At 31 December 2022 \:2::¢+‘ﬁ =+—H
and 1 January 2023 k_E_=%—H—H 121,710 23,471 145,181
Additions hE - 44,857 44,857
Transfer to investment ER LB
properties (note 17) (K% 17) (1,259) - (1,259)
Termination of leases KIS - (3,135) (3,135)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,618) (24,013) (27,631)
Impairment charge BEE R - (6,040) (6,040)
Exchange realignment PE R (2,371) (2,287) (4,658)
At 31 December 2023 A B =F+"F=1+—H 114,462 32,853 147,315
At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's right-of- ATE-_—F+_A=+—H> &
use land with a net carrying amount of approximately %.ﬁﬁﬁ@aﬁﬁ’] 272,000 7T (=

HK$11,272,000 (2022: HK$11,743,000) was

=

= — —

11 743 000 7t) &

pledged to secure general banking facilities granted fo
the Group (nofe 25).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
impairment loss of HK$6,040,000 (2022:
HK$18,796,000) represented the write-down of the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets for certain
underperforming stores fo their recoverable amounts
because the market conditions were out of management's
expectation. The estimated recoverable amounts as at
31 December 2023 were determined based on their
value in use amounts estimated by using a discount rate

f12.6%(2022: 12.6%).
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18. Leases (continved)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

18. & @)
AEMMELEBA (&

HE&E
FRHEERNREERESHNT !

2023 2022
—FZ= —F_
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BREE 56,577 78,865
New leases S 44,373 44,868
Termination of leases wIERE (3,181) (4,004)
Accretion of inferest recognised FRRESRA 210
during the year 2,478 3,028
Covid-19-related rent concessions BB AR HER Covid-19
from lessors BIEEENETER (273) (2,239
Payments (Ve (44,822) (58,522)
Exchange realignment PE AR (1,131) (5,419)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HKmE 54,021 56,577
Analysed info payable: DT A FEATRIA
Within one year —FR 32,627 33,751
In the second year E_F 16,262 14,015
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FLF (BEEEREE) 5,132 7,333
Beyond five years BiehF - 1,478
54,021 56,577
less: Current portion B L RENER S (32,627) (33,751)
Non-current portion IERBNEL 21,394 22,826

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in

nofe 35 to the financial statements.

The Group applied the practical expedient to all eligible
Covid-19-related rent concessions granted by the lessors

during the year ended 31 December 2022.

HESRIPONN Y HERRWEE
351K EE °

AEERHBE_T__F+_A4
=+—HBLEFEEHEAGTHRE
Covid 19 BN S EREE R
EERRITIEEE
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18. Leases (continued) 18.# E (#)
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAFEEA &
()  The amounts charged/(credited) in the income statement in () MUkzEFRMDEE(GtA) WIAEAERE
relation to leases are as follows: FIEWTE
2023 2022
—E-= T 5
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFE 2,478 3,028
Depreciation charge of rightofuse assets  {FRIEEETERS 27,631 34,880
Expense relating to shortferm leases FOHATE SFERA RS 242,058 235,567
Variable lease payments not included in Mt AFRE&ETEN
the measurement of lease liabilities Al E#FAE =R 3,729 3,723
Covid-19-related rent concessions TEHFE AR MHE Covid-19
from lessors BIEEENEEER (273) (2,239)
Impairment of rightof-use assets FEREEERE 6,040 18,796
Total amount recognised in the income  FAUREE RFESRALRE
statement 281,663 293,755
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33|(c) to (d) FEERESHHEZERIFERERMEE33()
the financial statements. e o
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18. Leases (continved)

18. & @)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties [note 17) consisting
of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Chinese
Mainland, and part of its owneroccupied staff quarters, under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants fo pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according fo the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$17,659,000 (2022:
HK$21,251,000), details of which are included in note 6 to

the financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

TERADLEA
AREBEIRBKSSHELHEEEREY X
(MzE17) > BESERTEAMIEH
MEKRBHEAYEETRES - HEKH
BEERELRLZ(RER X WIREERDN
BITHRETEREEHRE c- AEBFR
FESEMHEESIRA17,659,0008 T (ZE -
£ :21,251,000787T) * BREEIBEHNE
FRERAFRMFES ©

A _E_=F+_H=+—H  XEER
REREAREIR R B ER B 2 AN Al BEH A =
ERNEUCREIRHEENTUNT -

2023 2022

—g== BT F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Within one year —FR 14,043 14,464
After one year but within two years —FBEmERN 12,482 12,625
After two years but within three years _FBE=FRN 10,216 9,242
After three years but within four years —FBEBENFERN 5,117 5,310
After four years but within five years MERBRFA 5,072 2,009
After five years HER 8,341 6,254
Total 485t 55,271 49,904
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19. Other Asset

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City's
urban development plan issued by the Shenzhen City Luohu
District Town Re-development Bureau (7R3 28 48 & 3k i 2T
&), on 23 October 2017, Embry (China) Garments Lid.
("Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
enfered info a relocation compensation agreement and a
supplemental relocation compensation agreement (collectively
known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”] with
Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited (FHIIFIEIZ
HKREWMISERR LB, a company established in the PRC and
an independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in
order fo implement a renewal plan by demolishing and
rebuilding in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
details of the Relocation Compensation Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2017.
According to the Relocation Compensation Agreement, Embry
SZ shall surrender its land use right and ifs properties situated
in the Buxin Industrial Area (the “"Original Properties”). The
Developer, in return, agreed fo (i) compensate Embry SZ with
new properties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (Fr8EE =M A MELEEZE) on
a piece of industrial purposed land with an area similar to that
of the Criginal Properties to be developed and built by the
Developer (the “New Properties”); (i) compensate Embry SZ
the cost of land use right of the Original Properties, rental cost
for Embry SZ to lease properties during the move out period
and other costs related fo the Relocation Arrangement (“Cash
Compensation”), which are payable by the Developer up to
the end of the move out period; and (iii) sell exira properties at
a new building to be constructed in the Buxin Industrial Areq,
Shenzhen, the PRC (“New Building”) to Embry SZ, whereby
the price and area of such properties at the New Building
shall be subject to further negotiation between Embry SZ and
the Developer (collectively known as the “Relocation
Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties in the
prior years and signed the properties transfer confirmation (5=
B E] with the Developer on 30 November 2017.
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19.

20.

Other Asset (continved) 9. H fih & @£ (&)
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the BARRABDESFE—VSESHEFR
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, M~ 2EREE Z'S%.?Eﬁﬂ%?é@l’cﬂ”&

the Group does not expect any obsfacles to receive the New
Properties and the Cash Compensation from the Developer.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
derecognised the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments. According to the terms of the Relocation
Compensation Agreement and the property transfer
confirmation, the Group also recognised the fair value of the

B R IR HEN S HIREAER o
BE_T—tFE+"RA=+—HLEE>
REBRILESYE « BB k& B REAN
HEMREREE - RiERBHEHZEKRE
ERXERERNR > EERBE_Z
—tE+-A=+—HLEFEFRER=®
WSS EGT Y R R0 R (TEMEE)) B9

right fo receive the New Properties ("Other Asset”) as “"Other NEE » REWIREEE - HWEEYS
Asset” and the receivables in relation to Cash Compensation BEATERST - HERAMARREAR

during the year ended 31 December 2017. Other Assef is
initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently carries at
cost less impairment.

At 31 December 2023, the carying amounts of Other Asset
and receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the
Relocation Arrangement were approximately
HK$393,846,000 (2022: HK$402,697,000
HK$7,652,000 (2022: HK$7,824,000) (note 22),

respectively.

As at 31 December 2023, the recoverable amount of Other
Asset has been determined based on its fair value according
fo the valuation by using direct comparison method performed
by CWIL, an independent professional qualified valuer. The
valuation was dependent on cerfain significant unobservable
inputs including gross unit rate per square metre with a range
of RMB35,700 to RMB44,700 (2022: RMB36,800 to
RMB46,000) and an annual discount rate of 4.2% (2022:

4.75%). The fair value measurement was categorised under

A_E_=F+_HA=+—H ' HthEE
KB BB Z IR S HE R EUEERE
BN BIH 393,846,000 T(ZE-—1F :
402,697 ,00087T) & 7,652,000 7T (=
BT 1 7,824,00087T) (MiEE22) ©

N _E_ =+ _"H=+—H > Hth&EE
Wal W ElSBEEER B EXSEKMEE
B TR BRI E LB E TG ER
NEEETE - HERARETEARTATER
Rig ABIE > BRRETH KEEMESHE
ANER®35700FE N R#§44, 700 ( Z &
— " F: N R #3680 AN R ¥
46,000) R EFRRIREA 2% (ZEZ 26 ©
4.75%) c AR EEFEDEE “’V_%&IE

level 3. Ko

Inventories 20. 7 &
2023 2022
—E-= BT &
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Raw materials ERpgl 56,737 45,042
Work in progress RS 35,693 32,572
Finished goods G g 381,534 380,642
Total 485t 473,964 458,256
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21. Trade Receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for certain wholesalers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally for
a period of one month, extending up fo three months for major
customers. The Group seeks fo mainfain strict confrol over ifs
outstanding receivables by the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified cusfomers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over ifs trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-inferestbearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's frade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

21 W B 5 R sk

AEBTENEERTLAEERENTE
B HE—REEBRETHEBRILAM
EEHM—RAS—ER  EBERZEEH
AIREE=ER - AEBEZHEIMRIER
Wz FEURRIE - LUBRIE BRI » BHRAE
BRA D AR B 2B E HIRET o S50 L XXPit
REEEZBRE SRR RETEZE
FEAERPASRSZ  HUEEEBEES
th2 kR o ANEEE T L H B UL E 5 IR
BERFAEMERmEMEEMRE
it o FEUN B Z BRI AR ©

FEBNBRESHBEE R ZBIRE ZER™M
RIBERHRAZRE DA ¢

follows:
2023 2022
—F== -
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Within Q0 days QOHA 43,197 42,670
91 to 180 days Q1ZE 180H 1,746 4,372
181 to 360 days 1812 360H 295 5,268
Over 360 days 360HBL E 4,199 4,858
Subtotal N5t 49,437 57,168
less: Impairment allowance L ORERE (4,233) (9,725
Total 4Bt 45,204 47,443

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BB ZIRR R EEHNT

2023 2022

—E-= T 5

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

At 1 January »—A—H 9,725 5,609
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) RIE CREEHE) T /328

recognised, net (nofe 9) (HtaE ) (5,492) 4,116

At 31 December N+=-BA=+—H 4,233 9,725
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21. Trade Receivables (continved)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix fo measure ECls. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns [i.e., by geographical
region and customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

21. [EWE 5 Ik ()

KBRS APXBEFEEETRESD
> UETERMEERE - BHEERTBER
BAEELBEEREANZERF %8R (D
IR P ALY NEHRHERE -
Zet B RREAKINEER - EBRER
RIRE BRI SHAERIBESIR - ERF
RIS B TRRIR S IR P SEE Y ©

LT E7 AR EEREYE 7 IR EA R
wRERENEERERIER

RZEB_=F+"RA=+—H

Past due
bl
Tto3 3109 Over 9
months months months Total

1E3(ER 3E9ER Bl@9fEA it

Current

ENHA

ECL rate FEHEEREX 0.07%
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000)  BREI4E(E (Fi57T) 43,197
FCLs (HK$'000) BHREESE (THERT) 30

0.80%  6271%  9536%  8.56%
1,746 295 4199 49437
14 185 4004 4233

As at 31 December 2022

WZE-_—F+=-RB=+—H

Past due
ki
103 3109 Over 9

Current months months months Total

E 1Z23@8 3E9ER B@EOER 185t

ECL rate BHEEEEX 0.04% 28.80% 95.06% 70.81% 17.01%
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000)  BREI4E(E (Ti7T) 42,670 4,372 5,268 4,858 57,168
ECLs (HK$'000) RHEEHE (THET) 18 1,259 5,008 3,440 9,725
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22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22, AT SR IH - $%4 B At Wk

Receivables JH
2023 2022
) T F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deposit paid and related direct cost WS LR Tt E RS

for the land use right in Shandong REREMEZRER 8,960 9,161
Deposits for acquisition of items of WHEE ~ BRE MR EEE

property, plant and equipment Bff#EE 84 Q11
Prepayments A IE 20,746 13,280
Receivables in relation to Cash BRAMEBLZHNIREmME

Compensation under the Relocation FEWGRIE (B15E 19)

Arrangement (note 19) 7,652 7,824
Deposits and other receivables & T A WGRRIE 36,616 37,530
Total 4Est 74,058 68,706
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATEIAIE ~ s R EM

deposits and other receivables FEWGRIE 2 BRERER {5 (56,546) (57,034
Non-current portion JEEPHAER1A 17,512 11,672
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HhfEW T > BB E ST ¢
receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At 1 January W—B—H 7,754 =
Impairment recognised, net (nofe 9) TRERESD » FEE (AL Q) - 7,754
Exchange realignment BE 52 S (426) -
At 31 December B“+—-_B=+—H 7,328 7,754

RERHAMBUGRIEEEZEARRBLHT
REMEARANEEMNHMIZE R BUR
B FEAMNBERT  BIBEEBABAM
EAFRAIEEABNENER > 58
HEBETREDT - WREERH A
BERARNALEATE > AIESEAER
BV SER RS AR AL ST TRARE
R - SABBAKLURBERRE R
R IRASEARTHITRR ©

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental and
other deposits and receivables in relation to Cash
Compensation under the Relocation Arrangement. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings. In the
situation where no comparable companies with credit rafings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference fo the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted fo reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate.
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22.

23.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (continved)

Except for the aforementioned impaired other receivables, the
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts, and the loss allowance was assessed
fo be minimal as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

22, W AT K IE ~ 1% 4 B I i Wk
H ()
br Ll BB E 2 M UREIES - 5T A L
MAERNEMEEARITIRE R AL
HEKRSE RIE - _FR_E=4F
+ZA=+—HEXEESTHABE -

Cash and Cash Equivalents 23. 8RB EFED
2023 2022
—F-= - —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and bank balances B4 KIB1T45ER 100,895 154,261
Non-pledged time deposits with original N NGIEE RIS PSS
maturity of less than three months =ER Zz B\ EHMER
when acquired 182,715 219,635
Non-pledged time deposits with original REARRIHAE &2
maturity period over three months =BR Z EHREER
when acquired - 6,282
Cash and cash equivalents e RIES%EY) 283,610 380,178

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$267,024,000 (2022: HK$359,089,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies;
however, under Chinese Mainland's Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Seftlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Shortferm time deposits are normally made
for varying periods of between approximately one day and
three months on average depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
shorterm time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

AEERREHBEERIUARKSHEZ
IRE RIR1T4EERA 267,024,0008 75 (Z
T4 1 359,089,000 75T) o AR
EAUEHRHRAEMER  HRETER
KPEZ SNEBIRIRG » LURASEE « RREE
RSESERTE » AEBE S EERE
ETINERZEBEZIRTHRARKERIRA

HthE -

RTERRESREBETERNREE T
BAIRE R o RAEIERER FI95H
N—HE=ERF % > RFEEEER
REFRME > WA R ZEHEHREF™R
MG R o RITAEGRERIN T AT HRED
iR EEREFIRIT -
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24. Trade and Bills Payable 24, JEHF ¥ 5 MRk e B A 5 B8
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payable as KREENREREEE B 2RO B Z IR
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, RN EHRBREETER R IRE DTN
is as follows: T
2023 2022
—FZ= B HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Within 90 days Q0B 66,388 33,023
@1 to 180 days Q1% 180H 300 1,618
181 to 360 days 181 E360H 453 Q50
Over 360 days 3608 E 1,983 3,437
Total “ast 69,124 39,028
The frade payables are non-inferestbearing and are normally FEfT B Z BRI A 518 > —ARIL30E 0
seffled on 30 to Q0 days terms. BRI o

25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. it B 8T 15w

2023 2022
k- St 2%
Effective Effective
interest rafe Maturity  HK$'000 inferest rofe Matuity — HK$'000
1S BRF=
(%) ) ]S T#r (%] kil TEn
Current EP#A
Bank loans RITEMR Hong Kong Inferbank 2024 51,798 HIBOR+1.45 2023 38,877
— secured ~ BiL# Offered Rate EARTEE
(“HIBOR”}+1.45 HE+1.45
FRRTRE
8 +1.45
Bank loans RITER 3.50 2024 41,758 - = -
— unsecured — Ei
Total — Current st — BIHR 93,556 38,877
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

25. w5t B SRAT 8 % (@)

(continued)
2023 2022
- St} s
Effective Effective
inferest rate Maturity HK$000 inferest rate Maturity HK$'000
BRA= BIEH =
(%) ) ]S TR (%) e TEr
Non-current E[:01):
Bank loans BIER HIBOR+1.45 2025- 194,756 HIBOR+1.45 2024-2025 288,595
— secured - Big#E FRHTRE 2026 EERTRE
FE+1.45 HFE+1.45
Tofdl 4zt 288,312 327 472
2023 2022
—E_= 2
HKS’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Analysed info: VAK il
Bank loans repayable: R THIHRRBEE 2 IRITER
Within one year or on demand —FRHIZEREERE 93,556 38,877
In the second year FHF 81,985 64,757
In the third fo fifth years, inclusive FZEFAF (BEEREEE) 112,771 223,838
Total 4Bt 288,312 327,472
less: Amount classified as current portion DRl PN I R N e e (93,556) (38,877)
Amount classified as non-current portion S AIERNERER DAV ER 194,756 288,595

Notes:

(o]  The above bank loans amounting to HK$246,554,000 (2022:
HK$327,472,000) and HK$41,758,000 (2022: Nil) are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively.

et -

(a) J:Liﬁﬁféfﬂurﬁn}iz)\ﬁm‘nﬂﬁ ' ®
PR 246,554,0008 7T (=&

E 327, 472 OOO,%

e

T ) &
1,758, OOO/%TE (ZB—F 1 8|) o

(b)  Except for the bank loans of HK$41,758,000 as at 31
December 2023, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's investment property situated

in Hong

HK$92,000,000); and

[i]  morigages over the Group's building of HK$2,41

Kong of HK$92,000,000 (2022:

1,000

(2022: HK$2,512,000) and the corresponding rightof-

use land of HK$ 1
respectively.

1,272,000 (2022: HK$1

1,743,000),
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(b)

MR _E_=F+_RB=+—HZET
B £FE441,758,0008 7T 0 AEE
BB TIRITERZU T A UEEE

[l MUEREBRARESBINRENERIT
#4092 0000008 (ZE=Z
% 1 92,000,0007#7T) ; A

(i) AREEBTF R LA MBI
DRIF2,411,000 87T (ZB-—
£:2,512,0008 & ) R
11,272,000 8L (Z B =2 F:
11,743,000 #7T) °
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26. Other Payables and Accruals

6 . Lt JE £ ik JH K M Wt sk

2023 2022
—EZ= —ET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MtaE FHET FET
Other payables HihpERZhE (a) 54,709 59917
Accruals FEStRIR 100,397 84,447
Contract liabilities HHEE (b) 10,851 12,201
Total 4Bt 165,957 156,565
less: Amount classified as current portion J& © 51| BIHAER DAY EE (163,703) (153,483)
Amount classified as non-current portion %1/ BNERERIA U EE 2,254 3,082
Notes: MfaE
(a)  The amounts of HK$3,696,000 (2022: HK$5,908,000) o) XEBREMENSKEMESEDN
included in other payables of the Group were due fo related 3,606,000% w( = & = = &F:

companies as at 31 December 2023. These balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with

normal trading terms (note 13(alli)).

Other payables are non-inferestbearing.

(b)  As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2023, the
contract liabilities included deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty points VIP programme of the Group and short-term
advances received from customers for the sale of goods of
HK$12,201,000 and HK$10,851,000, respectively. The
decrease in contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 was mainly
due to the decrease in shortterm advances received from
customers for the sale of goods and deferred revenue arising

from the loyalty points VIP programme of the Group.
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o BEL
g

ﬂiﬁﬁﬂ‘rﬁ\

HthEARIES TR ©

bl R-EZZHF+ZA=+—HNZ-Z=
“=H+ZA=+—H ' 5HAREE
2712,201,000%8 7t 10,851,000
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27. Deferred Tax 27 3 %€ Bt I
The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the FERNELERIBERE (BE) BT :
year are as follows:
Temporary Withholding
difference faxes on Temporary Tox losses
arising from undistributed ~~ difference of availoble
the Unrealised profits on impairment, for offsetting
Revaluation Relocation profitof - Chinese Mainland provisions against future
of properfies  Arrangement inventories subsidiaries  and accruals Others  taxable profits Total
> FFRfEdidH
HEMERR BER RRERR
REsHET AR AR FEstRA RS
NREff  ZEREQ ERER BB 2ERER Eft 1 @t

HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T 7 T T

At 1 January 2022 RZE-ZF-A-H 12,678 114,524 30,763 24,267 (59,693 (321) (5,286) 55,406

Deferred fox debied foequity ~ ERERRINGZ
during the year g 913 B - - B B B o3

Deferred fox charged/[crediied]  EREME RN/
fo the income siafement (%) Z BB

duing the year fnole 12] (i 12) = 1,189) 4457 6,391 6,578 1226 (15,433) 2030
Paymens during fhe year ERTAY - - - (1.686) - (1,086) - [2.772)
Exchange realignment EREZ (1,027) 8,831) 2270 2067) 3,380 51 936 5.288)
At 31 December 2022 RIB_ZE

+ZA=1+-H 12,564 104,504 24,036) 26,905 (49.739) [130) 19.783) 50,289
At 1 Janvary 2023 R-E_=%-F-H 12,564 104,504 24,036) 26,905 (49,735) (130) 19,783) 50,289

Deferied fox debied fo equity ~ EREBEIIRZ
during e year BT 2407 = = = = = = 2407

Deferred fox charged/[crediied] £ MR/
fo the income statement (£%) zELHE

duing the year fnole 12] (Hz12) m - 3,836) 1,444 3712 817 23,446) 21,087)
Paymens duing fhe year FRTA - - - (1,444) - 731) - (2,175)
Exchange reclignment EQEE (303 (2,297) 570 (592) 725 (52) 689 (1,262)

At 31 December 2023 RIBE_ZE
+ZB=1+-H 14,888 102,207 (27,302) 26,313 (45,298) (%) (42,540) 2,172
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27. Deferred Tax (continved) 27 EREBIH (1)
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the UTAAEERMBERRME ZIRERIE
Group for financial reporting purposes: KEER DT
2023 2022
—FZ= —E_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the PR E MBI RER 2
consolidated statement of financial position TPIRIEIRIEE A (98,499) (74,542)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the  RARE B RRER 2
consolidated statement of financial position FIRERIAR R 126,671 124,831
Net deferred tax liabilities FRIERIEEE 28,172 50,289
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of Zli % BEREBRELA 2HERBIER 2’]

approximately HK$471,735,000 (2022: HK$445,832,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
faxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Macau of
HK$2,326,000 (2022: HK$2,630,000) that will expire in
three years for offsefting against future taxable profits. Deferred
fax assefs have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries estoblished in the PRC in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The
applicable rate is 5% or 10% for the Group. In estimating the
withholding taxes on dividends expected fo be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008, the directors have made
assessments based on the factors which included the dividend
policy and the level of capital and working capital required for
the Group's operations in the foreseeable future.
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“EEN\F-H-BEEENBRNMDIK
BYiR BRBATAIIR - ZEBRBERRE
#35%3% 10% o ft 51 8% 35 7 7 B Al 32 A9 FfY
BARRERRM _EE N\F—H—HIEFR
EENENMY KR SNENRE > BF
EREEERBBRREERNT RRR
MEFRNELRREEGR KT EREF
5 o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Hr 75 e 2 W 5 o)

31 December 2023 —E_=&#+_"A=+—H

27.

28.

29.

Deferred Tax (continved)

At 31 December 2023, the aggregate withholding fax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised fotalled approximately

HK$22,167,000 (2022: HK$27,724,000).

There are no income tax consequences atfaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27.EHE B IE (1)

RIEBE_=F+"B=+—H B
AL FA A B K B B9 B B 2 B0 48 R T AR e 5%
FEIERBEENEREINREESE
HN 4221670008 (& -
27.724,00087T) °

- D> 84 48

/A E) LR TR A B 8 B 25 (R
BRREHBE o

Share Capital 28. Jit A
2023 2022
= TR F
HKS’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Authorised: SEE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 &= mEE
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BT iER 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
422,416,638 (2022: 422,416,638 422,416,638 (ZE-__F:
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 422,416,638 %) S EE
0.01 B EER 4,224 4,224

Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The confributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant fo the reorganisation of certain members of the Group
which took place on 31 December 1992, over the nominal
value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited ("EGL") in
exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from the shares
issued by EGL for setlement of the amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii] the premium
arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.) Limited (“Embry
HK") from the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and
(iv) the excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.

29, fik i

RRRBEFERERRESEUNRESE
HERINMBFRERAG ST RA o

AERBREFE()REBEEAR—NNZ
F+A=+t—HKBETERETHER
8 ZEME AT RMNEEBHILIE
#3THAFEEST Embry Group Limited (TEGLY)
RRASIEEZESE ; (i) ECLREBR TR
PERGABIFRIA 15,841,000 8 o (T8
TROEENEE ; (jAIFERER I
LA S (B8) BRAR ((ZFEEHE))
Pt E 4 % 8 5,000,000 & 7T 5 K (v iR
EEEHWERBRABNRANEEBSN
AT EREITUER IR A E(ERY
BHUKRZEEARIFESHED
10,000,000 lz =R EE0.01 BTl E R
REKG o
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29. Reserves (continued)

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Company esfablished in the PRC are
required fo fransfer a certain percentage of their profits affer
fax, if any, fo the enterprise expansion and statutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject fo the
approval of the boards of directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the transitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred
prior fo 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was stated at cost,
which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2022: HK$3,168,000)
as at 31 December 2023.

30. Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28
May 2020 (the "Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
confribute fo the success of the Group's operations.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, ifs subsidiaries or invested entity; (ii] any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; i)
any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entity;
(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested entity;
and (v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any invested entity. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 28 May 2020 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a
period of fen years to 27 May 2030.
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BECYERRAERERS (9AFA
SIE) - WENSEASZZEWE AT
EEEHESAES o

AEBERAESAVHERSELNE IFHEN
BEMEY ) AF ST —F—HF—H#al
ETWEBMEENBE4FEARSHEDN
Hid o RENGERENE T —F—
B—Ba R B AR EENEmE SR
BAGE > RZE=F+=-"8=+—H
3,168,000 ww( =— & = = &F:
3,168,000 7T) ©

Jiis Tt A it
ARNBR_E-ZFHH_+/N\BIXMNEE
RetEstE (THEREETE)) - UBALER
MR EEEMN S ER 2 HEREEE
KHRE o

FERR A
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FERBES (BFEEE > BFAEEEMAIE
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RIFTIR E A R EAZE ~ FREE S Bt Alr
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

30. i i BE w3 o)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any fime. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant] in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is deferminable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a dafe which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is deferminable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the datfe of the offer of the
share options; (i) the average closing prices of the Company’s
shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and [iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

ReRetEstEl (@)
HITERERERES 8 A LB E R HAth
PR IEST 8 B R HE R ARITERIRBREM
BEITRMNBE > TEBARRREME
B E 1T 30% « RITHEREZER
RSB ERSEERHBRERNER
ZURER+ BB REETHIROEA
BEREEETRMN 1%AR - LR
HEFRIM R AR > SRR RICARER
ARG LHERSAIFE - AXATESE
THRH N T EZRRAEFREFHBEAR
TREIRE > WREANBBIUIIFRTES
FRAER > TRIMEE o

SN EER+ @B HEAN > mARE
FTERRIBUIFATEFHEAREZ
BMBARDEAERE  BEXATEM
R E TS 0.1% & (IRIEBARA TR
PREREBHNEHESE) BEBE
5,000,000# 7T > AIZBERRETIKRER
REHE > HEFE °

AR AF R ZZ&IR H B H HE ST 28
AR RBIAE | BlURnERE
It o BRIEITEHREFETE - &
BN EERERZRHARESEEER
BEZRREE RS A DR+ FIEaER
stElEmz BLE (UBRFEERE) o

BRETEETHESEE  EASER
MIREE | (| ERRKRNNEZELE
RiEE QEBRPINE BRERTRAIK
B (| ZRBDRONEEEZZRHEER
Z R A {E3 5 B PT S H IRERFTR
BT TS ; K (i) AR B RMEVEIE °
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30. Share Opti()ll Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

There are no cash setlement alternatives. The Group does not
have a past practice of cash setlement for these share options.
The Group accounts for the Share Option Scheme as an
equity-sefiled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or fo vote at shareholders” meetings.

Set out below are the outstanding share options under the

Share Option Scheme as af 31 December 2023:

30.

i Bt HE 1 B ()

BERRIELTEI (1)
FEEELN RS EE o AEMBAT &L
BT EHRE - AL ERES
B ARSI (ELU IR LS B RSB o

BRETER T A ARBRENIRER
ARG EREHRER]

YUTFHIN —_E_=F+"_H=+—HE

RRIESTEIIR T i RITERIMEARAE ¢

Number of share options
BRESR
At Gronted Lapsed Exercised At Exercise price of
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
Name or category of parficipant 2023 the year the year the year 2023 share opfions share options?! HKS per share!!
RZBZ= g RIRHETER
SHEHRNER -A-A bidtehe ERER EnfifE +2AZ+-A BRERLANR i G ShET
Execufve directors e
Madom Ngok Ming Chu EsLT 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
e g 29 December 2025
Z5T-EtTR=tRE
“ETRETCACTAA
Ms. Cheng Pik Holiza LS e 1,220,000 - - - 1220000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
2 = ) 29 December 2025
ZEC-F2R=1HE
“ZCRETCACAA
M. Cheng Chuen Chuen BEeRt 295,000 = = = 295,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
“5TRE+"R=1H 29 December 2025
ZZ_-FTR=1HE
“ECRETCACNA
Ms. lv Qun ERYL 665,000 = = = 665,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
e 2 - 29 December 2025
Z5T-F+ZB=1RE
ZECRFTCACNA
Independent non-execufive diretors  BiIEHITES
Mr. lau Siv Ki AERE 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
ZE2F+2R=1A 29 December 2025
ZRC-F+TR=1HE
“ECRFtCACNA
M. Lee Kwan Hung TlRE 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 Decerber 2021 fo 102
Z5I5E1TR=1H 29 December 2025
it ot S
“ERELCACINA
Prof. lee T.5. SREHR 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
ZZZFCR=1A 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+TR=1HE
Z2CRETZRZTAA
Substanial shareholder and IERFERE
his associate BRA
M. Cheng Man Tai ¥ BEELLED 1,430,000 - - - 1,430,000 30 Decerber 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 102
ZEIEE1TR=1R 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+CR=1HE
“ECRFtCACNA
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan' gemytu 185,000 - - - 185,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
e g 29 December 2025
Z5T-Et°R=tRE
“ETRETCACTAA
Other employees ftifES
In aggregate 5 12,695,000 - 635,000] - 12,060,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 102
TTIRETAS1H 29 December 2025
ZEC-F2R=1HE
ZZCRETCACAA
18,0000 T 500 T 1745500
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30. Share Option Scheme (continued) 30. i I A 5t & (%)
FERG SR ()

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes:

(1) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant of the share options was HK$1.00.

(2)  Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest in the granfees in accordance with the timetable below:

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2021 with an exercise period from 30 December 2021
to 29 December 2025:

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2022 with an exercise period from 30 December 2022
to 29 December 2025; and

—  the remaining 40% of such options were vested on 30
December 2023 with an exercise period from 30
December 2023 fo 29 December 2025.

(3)  Mr. Cheng Man Tai is the consuliant of the Company and the
spouse of Madam Ngok Ming Chu.
(4)  Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the Senior Sales and Marketing

Manager and granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share

P¥EE

(1 HEZBEREESBHRIEAERMIK
B4 1.00#87T °

(2) IREBEEARRES B L Z BRI DUT B
BREBTAERA !

HA 30 E-_—F+_H=+
HEB TR _ S —_—F+—
B=+HE_ZE_-_HF+_H
—+h8;

BINOUMR B _EFE+ZB=+
HEE TR _ S 5+
B=4+HB&E-_ZE_-_HF+_A8
“+thB;; &

HER 40N B _=F+"A=+
@ > THEHRH_E_=F+_
B=+tHE-Z"#nF+_"H8
“+hB-

(3] EEREERETRBRBEBRERKEL LT
ZEef® o

(4) BERBYLTHSREHSERBE RS
EMERRLLZHRL ©

DU A ENERES BIIE N HRITENE

Option Scheme during the year: Ao
2023 2022
—ZZ= B F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price price
DNt INFEF13
TEE TEE
HKS$ Number HK$ Number
per share of options per share of options
EiRET FEREHE BRET BREYUE
At 1 January rR—HA—H 1.02 18,090,000 1.02 18,725,000
lapsed during the year F R 1.02 (635,000) 1.02 (635,000)
At 31 December R+=-B=+—H 1.02 17,455,000 1.02 18,090,000
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme during the year (2022: Nil).

The Company recognised a share option expense of
HK$413,000 (2022: HK$956,000) during the year ended
31 December 2023.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
17,455,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
issue of 17,455,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately
HK$175,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$ 17,629,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 17,455,000 share options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
4.13% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

31. Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following contractual commitments:

30.

31.

B 5 RE 513 (=)

R IEETE (8)
FERTERIEEREER L EERE (Z
BT F ) o

HE_ T _=—F+"_B=+—HILEE"
KA HESREENFESZ 413,000 (Z&
T4 956,000E7T) ©

RIREHR » AATREBREEIE TS
17,455,00017 B B #E 18 R 1716 » R
NEVPRITE ARG » BEITERRITEN
PR R B R 81T BRIN 17,455,000 B A&
NEZ B R EAIMNE AL 175,000 87T K4
BE1D 1B 17,629,000 7T (Rt 321768
S Hi) o

REFHHRRESLEER AATAE
17,455,00017 BB e 5t 8 IB F R BB AR &
EARTTE > HEREBNEATERETR
EI4.13%

YR
RREMIEEE > AEEZTHRIEN
IR 2

2023 2022

—E-= T _F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FAET

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  BEEY% « BB KRR E 105,725 116,154
32. Contingent Liabilities 32. KA A

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

RREHR » MHRERPIESHREEZ
HABBMT :

2023 2022
=== —F_—
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property AHABYERERE R AHEN
renfal deposits and utility deposits BEFRIR 2 IRITIRR 646 428
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Statement

of Cash Flows

(a)

(b)

(c)

)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$44,373,000 (2022: HK$44,868,000) and
HK$44,373,000 (2022: HK$44,868,000],

respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for

properties and stores.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

33. %%

CECEAIE-$ 3

(o) FR> AEERYEREHEE
ZHNEREEEREESET
WERE D B #44,373,0007% 7T
(ZZ T4 [ 44,868,000 7T) &
44,373,000 T(Z & Z Z F:
44,868,000#87T) °

() RMEEHNELEEEREE

Interest-
lease  bearing bank
liabilities borrowings
HEaE FEIRITER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1 January 2022 A B __F—HF—H 78,865 346,482
Changes from financing cash flows MBRERELE) (58,522) (28,157)
New leases S 44,868 -
Termination of leases #KIEME (4,004) -
Interest expenses MERX 3,028 9147
Covid-19-related rent concessions FEHE ARMEE Covid- 19515
from lessors HENEEER (2,239 -
Exchange realignment PE AR 5,419) -
At 31 December 2022 and N ZEF+ZA=1+—H
1 January 2023 r—_E_=F—H—H 56,577 327,472
Changes from financing cash flows MBREREEE (44,822) (56,641)
New leases s 44,373 -
Termination of leases #IFAE (3,181) -
Interest expenses FERX 2,478 17,481
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHEAIRMEE Covid-19% 15
from lessors HENHEEER (273) =
Exchange realignment B R sREE (1,131) -
At 31 December 2023 N BT =—F+"H=+—H 54,021 288,312
Total cash outflow for leases ( THERERHAEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement STAREMERNEEREREAE
of cash flows is as follows: ZEUE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating acfivities K TEE 245,787 239,290
Within financing activities FhEEENN 44,822 58,522
Total 4Bt 290,609 297,812
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34. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets

LI
TREE

34, 5%KN 5 Bz & TR
RREBEE O S ESHTANKEE

Financial assets at
amortised cost

BN EZ
EREE
2023 2022
—|_-= S
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FBT
Trade receivables FEUL B8 Z BRFR 45,204 47,443
Financial assets included in prepayments, AT N ek
deposits and other receivables HABWGRIE SRS E 29,888 21,319
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIES%EY) 283,610 380,178
Total 4Est 358,702 448,940
Financial liabilities Ed I=RE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
BN HEZ
ERaE
2023 2022
—g-= TECTHF
HKS’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Inferestbearing bank borrowings STEIRITER 288,312 327,472
lease liabilities HEaE 54,021 56,577
Trade and bills payable FEAT B 5 AR IR R4 69,124 39,028
Financial liabilities included in other BEEEREMENHRIER
payables and accruals fEstRIBz A E 97,363 89,563
Total 4E=t 508,820 512,640
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35. Financial Risk Management

35. B % B b A B H B K BUR

Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash,
shorterm deposits and  interestbearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
tfrade and bills payable, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow inferest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group's exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floafing inferest rates.

At present, the Group does nof infend to hedge ifs exposure fo
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2023, the loss before tax of the Group
would have been increased/decreased by approximately
HK$ 1,442,000 (2022: HK$1,637,000) if the interest rate
had been increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant.

FEBEZTESHTACERS  BHF
st BIRTTEMR - LESMT AT EH
NEATEECEXHME - ~EEEH
thrREMEERER » WEKEZ RN
KRIEM B ZERRENRE » ThEEEIB

FEESMTI A FTERMBATRRRE
SNERRR - EERRAABEZRAR - &
SERTHEEEULSERERR ZBER
ERERMIT -

B

RERENXEARAEM TARRRER
ERTHAERECMRBNER - AEH
FIR AR AFERIBERENZRER - &
EEPAZH XS TS EE 0 TE2H
RERF I ENRITERER ©

BT > NEEEEHIPFTARZ IR
B) o 28T > ANEEER E R ET B
HFXREBRRR  TEEEHRECTHRE
BitiE 2 RV hE o

A= _EF+ T2k 50 &8 > mFrA EfthEA
EREFERE R_B=F+"A=+—
B> AEBERRAIGEEBIEN,BH
1,442 000787 (ZF -4 : 1,637,000
Br) °
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sale and purchase fransactions mainly
in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does nof use
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility
associated with foreign currency transactions and other
financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of
business. However, as the Group’s net loss is reported in
Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation gain as a result
of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The majority of the
Croup's operating assefs are located in Chinese Mainland
and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's loss before fax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

35. B % B b 4 B H B K BUR ()

SIEE | B
FEETEUBTRARBETEER
5 o REEWEUITE SR T REREHH
EEBBREZIINERZ REAMERMEER
BB 2K E) o 2AM » ARAEEZ
ERUBTEY WA RBIHER H2RE
Rle 0 RZINA - ZEBEKRBNEEE
EEINI B AR » WU REFIR o

TEIIRI RS AREHE - AR
IRRFRETBNERT > AEENR
RATEES A RSEX T A R AR S
ZHEE (BREREERERNATE
28) o

2023

I Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
I Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB

2022

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in loss
AR before tax
EBxELrR PRt AiES18
(F:@) i&hn, GRL)
% HK$'000
FET
—E-=
HAETREAREERE 5 (874)
HAETREAREHE (5) 874
BT
METEAREERE 5 (440)
WHAETREAREHE (5) 440
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35. B % B b 4 B H B K BUR ()

35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Credit risk

The Group frades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit terms
and defailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
cusfomers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained at
minimal.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure fo credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end sfaging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assefs.

As at 31 December 2023

= 8RR
FEBEENZREERFNETRETR
5 o RBEAEENER  ERARUEE
ERETRZNEFIREBEERERR
FF o lb5h » ZEETFEERR BRI
BiEiR e FEEHSRERRUESR
88 BUHIRBEZ#W ARSI ZEEU A
ASIEHEE - N AEERIEEER > 1A
HERER ZEEFFRTL > WEAER
ZIRAR A SRR o

BRARE R F AL 3R
TRETENRTEREERRNEEER
REREERE  ZEERREEZERN
+TZR=+—HEBEARER (FRIFEM
ERBAMH T ORI AE IR E
%) U F-RDEINE o

2IEEATHEENIREBE -

W-_E-=%+-"A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 B 8HA
Z85HE 2HRBEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BI1RER F2MEE B IR 5§ (9p st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#7 F#E7 FHw F#E7 FET
Trade receivables* MEW B SaRT * - - - 49,437 49,437
Financial assefs included in HATEMHIE  HER
prepayments, deposits and HitEEZIEN
other receivables LHBEE
— Normal** — EE** 29,888 - - - 29,888
— Doubfful** — RER** - 7,328 - - 7,328
Cash and cash equivalens RERREEEY
— Not yet past due — HREH 283,610 - - - 283,610
Total ezt 313,498 7,328 - 49,437 370,263
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35. Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies (continved)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2022

35. B % B b 4 B H B K BUR ()

SEER ()
AR ERDIH (&)
R-E__F+"-HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12185 %4
EEER EHEHEERR
Simplified
Stoge | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Tofal
FIEE FIEER FIER &lbn% 4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET FAET
Trade receivables* FER BB SBE * - - - 57,168 57,168
Financial assefs included in SABAEZIE BER
prepayments, deposits and H UM
other receivables SRIBE
— Normal** — FE** 21,319 - - - 21,319
— Doubfful* * — RE** - 7754 - - 7754
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBELZEY
— Not yef past due — HAEH 380,178 = = 380,178
Total ot 401,497 7,754 = 57,168 466,419

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

opprooch for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

* %

The credit quality of the financial assefs included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assefs had a significant
increase in credit risk since inifial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be

"doubtful”.

Liquidity risk

liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's

objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to

monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain @
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet ifs liquidity requirement.
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group continued fo enjoy adequate cash position with cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$283,610,000 (2022:
HK$380,178,000) as at 31 December 2023. The Group
financed ifs operations and investment activities by internally
generated cash flows and bank borrowings. The maturity profile
of the Group's financial liabilities as af the end of the reporting
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as

35. B % B b 4 B H B K BUR ()

mBEEER (&)

R_E_=F+_F=+—H» xEE#
BEARRBREZHBERR  HIRS KR
S EBYA 283,610,000 (B
£ :380,178,000/87T) - KERBEBR
EHEEZIRERRIBITER > BEEEK
KRETHRMES - RIREHHELEEH »
AEBIRBENRBIRNITGEZ SME

follows: BEIHAEWNT ¢
1 year or Over
ondemand 110 5 years 5 years Total
BEREE —ERf BARF Haxt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT TET
2023 - i
Inferestbearing bank borrowings StRIRTTER 204,138 = 314,639
lease liabilities HE&E 22,167 - 56,497
Trade and bills payable R EZERKRENRE - - 69,124
Other payables and accruals EhpE TIE R et 2B 2,254 - 97,363
Tofal st 228,559 - 537,623
2022 k- Jaant - 3
Inferestbearing bank borrowings stRIRTTER 305,412 = 352,286
lease liabilities HESE 35,577 23,347 644 59,568
Trade and bills payable R EZERKRENRE - - 39,028
Other payables and accruals HhENEZIE R EREIE 3,082 - 89,563
Total “ast 207,960 331,841 644 540,445
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed
in note 32 fo the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will
be able o continue as a going concem while maximising the
refurn to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity affributable to owners of
the Company. Equity affributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
fotal bank borrowings divided by the equity attributable fo
owners of the Company. The gearing rafios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

35. B % B b 4 B H B K BUR ()

mENE = EE (8)

B@REMBIRR > ARETEHEASE
TR HE—T 5 FRER M BREM
F320

BAER
FEEEEHERURARAEEERES
B ARTEEREBBILEB EDE
g (NEA) FEA ANERIEERK ° I
Eizi_—\,__fﬁ)i’z_;ﬁ:_fﬁ-f- A
=+—HIEFE BBEAZEEBR

FEBEREHREEREFRATEER
TERRTABEE NEGRE - AT
A ANRIERIESEG SR B BRI
BHEEITRAKER -

FABDBBEEGRLERRRE (RANRITE
TABEEPRUR A B A A B E) BT
B - RIREAREEABLERNT !

2023 2022

—gZ= S

HKS’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Inferestbearing bank borrowings = ESRIT(EER 288,312 327,472
Equity affributable to owners KATIHER NEEHEL

of the Company 2,158,382 2,272,332

Gearing ratio EESBIEE 13.4% 14.4%
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36. 7 2 W) M B IR P %

36. Statement of Financial Position of

the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company af the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AT EARGBRRRIT :

2023 2022
—¥-= -
HKS’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT Z s 911,692 Q18,196
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments FAFRIE 86 208
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIESZEY) 282 283
Total current assets BB EMRE 368 497
CURRENT LIABILITIES bk =R
Other payables and accruals HAER I & EST IS 2,240 2,276
Net current liabilities mENAERE (1,872) (1,785
Net assefs BEFE 909,820 916,411
EQUITY L
Share capital g 4,224 4,224
Reserves (Note) 5 (Hfat) 905,596 912,187
Total equity 4B 909,820 Q16,411
Note: M=t
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RREEBREWNT
Share
premium Contributed ~ Share option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
Rfn Bk Ro&EeR FRIR RS R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FET Fé&m Tin
At 1 Jonuary 2022 RZIEZZF—HA—H 386,512 381,248 2,136 148,434 918,330
Loss for the year and fofal FEFEREEZERRAE
comprehensive expenses for the year - - - [7,099) 7,099
Share option lapsed BRELH - - (37) 37 -
Equitysetled share option armangements RIEEERERETH = = 956 = 956
At 31 December 2022 RIB-_Z&+°A=+-H
and 1 January 2023 kZEZ=F—F—H 386,512 381,248 3,055 141,372 912,187
Loss for the year and fofal FEEBREELERZAR
comprehensive expenses for the year - - - (7,004) (7,004)
Share option lapsed BRERN - - (75) 75 -
Equitysefiled share option arrangements REEERERETH = = 413 = 413
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=#+"A=1+—H 386,512 381,248 3,393 134,443 905,596
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36.

37.

Embry Holdings Limited %

Statement of Financial Position of
the Company (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

The confributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
then net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
fo the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the then
existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid
at par. Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium and contributed surplus may be distributed to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed fo be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

36. 7 2 W) I IR P % ()

Hist : (%)

FRBNEBHEGFT AR BDREBEREHKE
NEARNEREEFHEBLE AR I ET
RN AE B RREEARIIEHE
910,000,000 i EREEO.01 BTHER IR
Eﬂyfﬁﬂﬁ}ﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁ%@ﬂ}i ahpic
BRI DR T ARABIIRER o MR

IKIIRE IR > ARABELAEREEEREATEE

Eu

FHREIHA(EIAE o

37. BEWE A FE R
AADEEMBATWEBEMT :

follows:

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
regisiration and fully paid share/ equity atiributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
s BRTRER
%8 RS ES iR E FATIEEREEE AL TEEH
2023 2022
B CTCCE

Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$ 100 100 100 Invesiment holding
ZHBEMBERAE &5E 100%7T BREER
Embry (Changzhou) Gaments Lid. PRC/ RMB176,200,000 100 100 Manufacture of ladies’ brassieres,

("Embry CZ")** Chinese Mainland A ¥ 176,200,000 7% panties,swimwear and sleepwear

ZH5 (7 H) RERR FREl/HEIARE and property investment

(TRFIF M) ** S MEE

PR KT ERE

Embry (China) Garments Lid. PRC/ HK$ 11,000,000 100 100 Troding of ladies’ brassieres, panties,

(Embry SZ)** Chinese Mainland 11,000,000 %7t swimwear and sleepwear
215 (PE) FREEAR e/ B ARE BEELHIE I ATRREER

( Z‘Zﬁ%%fﬂm o
Embry (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$45,000 100 100 Troding of ladies’ brassieres, panties,

("Embry HK') BFE  *Nonvoting deferred swimwear and sleepwear and

ZHE (é #) BIRAHE HK$4,500,000 property investment

(T=F B EB) B8Rz 45,0008 BEELEHE - A

XS ERERIER ARREREAERE
4,500,000

Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies” brassieres, panties,

Limited [Embry [Macau] pid ] 100,000 BP9« swimwear and sleepwear

Pronto A Vestir, Limitada)

ZHF (BP9 BEARAT

BERBRAE / Annual Report &%k 2023
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: [continued)

37. LEWE 6 & F @)

AN EEWBASNEENT | (&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
Eaii AT BRITRAE
2 SRR E R R&fp /& TATFEGEEE 2 TELEH
2023 2022
—¥_=F C"E__f
Embry (Shandong] Garments PRC/ US$28,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and frading of
Limited ["Embry SD"|** Chinese Mainland 28,000,0003%7% ladies' brassieres, panties,
ZH5 (L) REBRAT R/ HREIARE swimwear and sleepwear
(T F IR ** REREELHHE
PR KRR EER
Embry (Shandong) Trading Limited PRC/ RMB3,000,000 100 100 Trading of ladies” brassieres, panties,
("Embry Trading’) Chinese Mainlond A 3,000,0007T swimwear and sleepwear
ZH5 (LR BRERAT R/ HREIARE BELIEHE - /8 -
Gesapz=t2N) IR BT
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and development
Limited ["Embry SH')** Chinese Mainland 238,000,00087c and frading of ladies' brassieres,
ZH5 (L8 BIRAS D/ FEIARE panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(TREE L)) ** and property investment
Rt % BHEREELHM
B ~ iE KRR R R E
Embry (jinan| Technology Development PRC/ RMB1,000,000 100 N/A  Provision of services for corporate events
Limited ["Embry Development)***  Chinese Mainland ~ AE#1,000,0007% RIEREEBR
ZH% (Em) BRERBRAY R/ HREIARE
(rZFBER)) ***
Embry Gaments Limited BVI USS$1 100 100 Investment holding
RERUHE 1 %7 REER
Embry Group Limited | “EGL”) BVI US$472 100 100 Invesiment holding
HEBELHE 472%7 REER
Embry Intenational Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Invesiment holding
ZHBERERAT HEBELHE 1 %7 BREER
Gallin Invesiments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
EERERRAR &% 287 REER
Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of rademarks
HBELHE 1 %7 FEER
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(continued)

* The non~oting deferred shares carry no rights fo dividends (other than

* *

* ok Kk

for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK
available for dividend exceeds HK$ 1,000,000,000,000), no rights
fo vote at general meefings and no rights fo receive any surplus in
return of cctpifo/ in a Winding-up in respect of the first

HK$500,000,000,000,000.

Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD, Embry Trading and Embry SH
are registered as whollyforeign-owned enterprises under the PRC
law.

Embry Development is registered as a private company with
limited liability under the PRC law.

Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give defails of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

38. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2024.
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B FREIE AL IR 00 S ) 5 R M A R S
(1 22 #] 75 & 8 5] (# K B 59 44 | 8 8
1,000,000,000,000 & 7T B9 1F fa] B L 4F
EB5N) ~ IRIRRA & LRERIS BT
W E 500,000,000,000,000 7R [2]
BRI E I EER ©

LR M~ RS ~ Ze RS LLER

ZHFE G RZFH L AGIIIRE P EE
BB EINEEE

7 BB IR EDE B A A B
=7

A
RA

=

PRECLSN » LHFFE B ATIRARTF
BERA o

ERHIIRRFNWBAT > EFDBAZE
MEBARETERELFEEENBREE
EEEFENETERD - EFRA 0 = H
HthM B AR BERERRBREE
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